
Date Published:19 November 2020     

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Friday 27 November 2020 at 10.00 am

Please note that this meeting will be held remotely and can be
viewed on the County Council website at
www.gloucestershire.gov.uk

AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES Stephen Bace

2  MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 1 - 8) Stephen Bace

3  DECLARATION OF INTERESTS Cllr Shaun 
Parsons

4  WORK PLAN 

Forthcoming Executive Decision List
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgDelegatedDecisions.
aspx?&RP=0K=0&DM=0&HD=0&DS=1&Next=true&H=1&META=mgforthc
omingdecisions&V=1

Council Strategy
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/media/2083042/gcc_2325-council-
strategy-2019_dev20.pdf 

Risk Management item scheduled for early 2021

Cllr Shaun 
Parsons

5  STRATEGIC PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT REPORT 2ND 
QUARTER 2020/21 (Pages 9 - 50)

It would be helpful if members would email in detailed questions arising 
from the performance reports in advance of the meeting. This will enable 
officers to have prepared responses and also better support the 
committee’s debate on these matters.

Rob Ayliffe

6  FINANCIAL MONITORING REPORT (Pages 51 - 64) Paul Blacker

https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/media/2083042/gcc_2325-council-strategy-2019_dev20.pdf
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/media/2083042/gcc_2325-council-strategy-2019_dev20.pdf


    

7  PERFORMANCE REPORT - CORPORATE RESOURCES 2ND 
QUARTER 2020/21 (Pages 65 - 68)

Steve Mawson

8  PUBLIC PARTICIPATION SCRUTINY TASK GROUP (Pages 69 - 76) Cllr Shaun 
Parsons

9  ANNUAL SCRUTINY REPORT (Pages 77 - 126) Cllr Shaun 
Parsons

10  ARRANGEMENTS FOR BUDGET SCRUTINY (Pages 127 - 128)

Please see attached the proposed agenda for 7 January 2021 committee 
meeting.

Cllr Shaun 
Parsons

Membership –  Cllr Robert Bird, Cllr Kevin Cromwell, Cllr Iain Dobie, Cllr Kate Haigh, 
Cllr Joe Harris (Vice-Chair), Cllr Stephen Hirst, Cllr Shaun Parsons (Chair), 
Cllr Nigel Robbins OBE, Cllr Brian Robinson, Cllr Ray Theodoulou, Cllr Eva Ward and 
Cllr Lesley Williams MBE

Added Members - 

Co-Opted Member - 

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about 
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Monitoring
Officer (Rob Ayliffe Tel: 01452 328506 e-mail: rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk) prior
to the start of the meeting.

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect Minutes or 
Reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact:
Stephen Bace, Lead Democratic Services Officer
:01452 324204/fax: 425850/e-mail: stephen.bace@gloucestershire.gov.uk

Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is permitted subject 
to the Local Government Access to Information provisions.  Please contact Democratic Services (tel 
01452 324202) to make the necessary arrangements ahead of the meeting.  If you are a member of 
the public and do not wish to be photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services 
Officer on duty at the meeting.

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as 
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to 
Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  Please remain there and await further instructions.

mailto:andrea.clarke@gloucestershire.gov.uk


- 1 -

CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
MINUTES of a meeting of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee held virtually 
via Webex on Wednesday 30 September 2020.

PRESENT:
Cllr Rob Bird 
Cllr Kevin Cromwell 
Cllr Iain Dobie 
Cllr Kate Haigh 
Cllr Joe Harris (Vice Chair)
Cllr Lesley Williams 

Cllr Nigel Robbins 
Cllr Stephen Hirst 
Cllr Shaun Parsons (Chair) 
Cllr Brian Robinson 
Cllr Eva Ward 
Cllr Ray Theodoulou 

Substitutes:

In attendance: Cllr Lynden Stowe, Cabinet Member Finance and Change
Rob Ayliffe, Director of Policy Performance & Governance and 
Monitoring Officer
Simon Harper, Head of Democratic Services
Steve Mawson, Executive Director of Corporate Resources
Stephen Bace, Lead Democratic Services Adviser
Kathryn Haworth, Interim Lead Commissioner: Highways
Jenny Grodzicka, Head of Information Management Service 
(DPO)

Apologies:

1. APOLOGIES 

See above

2. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

The minutes of the meeting on 23 July 2020 were agreed as a correct record.

In response to a question on the appointment of Equality Member champions it was 
explained that the names of group representatives were being sought and a first 
meeting would be organised.   

3. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

No additional declarations were made.

4. WORK PLAN 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

Members noted the Forthcoming Executive Decision List and the Council Strategy 
when considering items for the work plan.

5. ANNUAL OVERVIEW OF NEED AND COUNCIL PERFORMANCE IN 
GLOUCESTERSHIRE 

5.1 Rob Ayliffe provided an overview of demand and performance outlining key issues 
and trends emerging from the Covid-19 pandemic. He introduced the presentation 
detailing the impacts of Covid-19 in relation to changing patterns of demand for key 
services; the requirement to adapt service delivery for social distancing, new duties, 
powers and responsibilities; loss of income and disruption of saving plans alongside 
the instability of key markets; and the impact on staff wellbeing and resilience. He 
also emphasised the impact on performance and loss of income in addition to 
impact on savings plans.

5.2 Members understood that the overall number of deaths amongst the 
Gloucestershire population had been 5% higher than the previous 5 year average 
(Jan-Aug).  The rate had returned to move normal levels in recent months. The 
Committee heard about the pressures on care homes and a significant drop in 
admissions to care homes creating a risk to the stability of providers. Consideration 
needed to be given on the long-term impact of delayed health interventions and the 
impact of isolation on those with mental health problems. Despite these challenges, 
there had been a large community response and a great deal of resilience 
demonstrated over the period; the long term positive impact of this was unknown. 

5.3 With regards to Public Health and Wellbeing, it was explained that the pandemic 
had significantly increased the scope and overall volume of the team’s work. 
Specific concern was raised about the impact of Covid-19 on inequalities both 
immediately and in the medium and long term. Members recognised the reliance on 
the voluntary and community sector and the need to make sure those groups could 
continue their work. 

5.4 There was an expectation that there would be an Autumn peak in referrals into 
Children’s Social Care as a result of ‘latent demand’ and unidentified risk. Members 
recognised the long-term psychological and educational impacts of children and the 
potential impact of lockdown. Social distancing created additional pressure for 
schools and on home to school transport. Lockdown had resulted in a backlog in 
family court activity. 

5.5 Members noted the significant changes to the operating model for Libraries, 
Archives, HRCs and Adult Education and the clearing of backlog of demand for 
registration and citizenship ceremonies which was now being cleared. It was noted 
that digital reliance could create new inequalities.

5.6 The Committee recognised that there had been a modal shift in people’s travel 
habits and preferences over the period with more individuals working from home, 

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

choosing to cycle and reducing their use of public transport. Members also noted 
potential delays to some major schemes.

5.7 There was a backlog in relation to Community safety activity such as Safe and Well 
visits, Fire Safety audits and Coroners Inquests. GFRS cultural improvement 
journey had been slightly delayed over the period as the emergency took priority.

5.8 It was not yet clear what the longer-term impact would be on the Council or wider 
public sector finances. Members noted the move to virtual and hybrid meetings and 
the adaptations to premises and offices to make the Council buildings Covid-19 
secure. It was explained that there had been increased pressure on an ageing ICT 
infrastructure and that a large amount of progress had been made in this area.

5.9 One member asked what provision was in place for children’s services staff visiting 
the houses of children and families. In response it was explained that PPE was 
provided to all staff, but only those in adult social care could be tested even if they 
were asymptomatic. If someone displayed symptoms in other services they were 
advised to isolate and get a test. 

5.10 In response to a question on QR codes in Council buildings for Track and Trace, it 
was confirmed that QR codes were present in public entrances.

5.11 In response to a question on what work was in place to move homeless people or 
rough sleepers into temporary or permanent accommodation, it was explained that 
the latest data had 54 people currently placed in hotels. Gloucester City had taken 
over responsibility, but the Council was working with colleagues and partners in this 
area. In addition it was asked whether the Council was doing any outreach work. 
More information would be provided (After the meeting an update was circulated to 
all members on the committee).
ACTION Sarah Scott/ Kath Rees

5.12 One member asked what the lessons learned had been over this period and what 
plans were in place for future challenges. The Senior Leadership Team had met to 
discuss this and there was recognition that the length of the emergency and 
breadth of the impact meant that it had been like no other. A review of business 
continuity management arrangements was also underway. 

5.13 Members were reassured that in relation to tackling childhood obesity, this was an 
area the public health team were looking into and developing proposals. 

5.14 There was a discussion around staff working from home and the return back into 
the Shire Hall and other Council buildings. The initial focus was on speaking to 
managers and teams to ensure that those who needed to come back due to 
productivity or wellbeing were able to. The Council was looking at how technology 
could assist in those areas and to ensure that the recent flexibility was not lost in 
the long term.

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

5.15 Members understood that the IT contract was coming to an end. The contract would 
be split up with some services such as the service desk being provided in-house 
and some being picked up by other providers. There were also plans to rollout 
Windows 10 and Office 365. Some members raised concerns about Members ICT 
and it was explained that a future solution would involve Office 365. One member 
explained the importance of gaining feedback from members relating to IT.

5.16 In response to a member’s question, it was explained that a lot of work had been 
done to feed back into the Economic Growth Committees to understand where 
economic support was needed. Government guidance had wanted to ensure that 
local government was doing what it could to support suppliers and provide security 
in relation to payments. The County Council had operated with due diligence. In 
relation to social care providers, in terms of financial support, the situation had 
returned closer to normal. One member noted that the focus for Adult Social Care 
had been on providing support in people’s homes and the result of that was that 
demand for care homes dropped.

5.17 There was a discussion about the differing views of how GCC staff had worked with 
district colleagues with some positive and negative examples. It was stated that the 
pressure on staff was something being looked at as part of the business continuity 
arrangements. 

5.18 Members requested an additional finance briefing ahead of the budget session in 
January 2020. Steve Mawson agreed to arrange a separate (non public) meeting 
for members.
ACTION Steve Mawson

6. MOTION 866 - RAINBOW FLAG CROSSINGS 

6.1 Kathryn Haworth introduced a report that provided members with some context and 
improved awareness of the issues and considerations around introducing rainbow 
crossings. The item was on the Committee agenda having been referred across 
from Full Council on 9 September 2020. The original motion was: 

This Council notes that the public realm can be used by local authorities to promote 
inclusivity and community cohesion and to advance equality of opportunity and foster good 
relations between those who share a protected characteristic and those who do 
not. 

Council further notes that long lasting and colourful road crossings can also enhance the 
design of the public realm and provide interesting and safer places to cross the road. 

This Council resolves to call on the Cabinet to create an inclusive rainbow flag crossing in 
Gloucester City centre in time for Pride month 2021 and to enter into discussions with other 
districts about suitable locations for crossings to be located over the next 2 years. This will 
support Pride in Gloucestershire’s bid for Europride 2026 to be held in the county. 

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

6.2 The Committee noted that a number of trials had been carried out in London under 
Transport for London since 2015.  They had provided the opportunity to collaborate 
with artists and to celebrate culture. Many had also been introduced using more 
standard designs such as the LGBT+ rainbow flag colours.

6.3 Members noted a recent report from Brent Council and the examples that could be 
taken from there.

6.4 All road markings and signs on the highway had to comply with the Traffic Signs 
Regulations and General Directions. Advice had been sought from the DfT about 
the use of coloured or rainbow crossings on the highway. In summary, they advised 
that anything striped or resembling a zebra crossing should be avoided, as it was 
likely to cause confusion about the level of priority that pedestrians had. They also 
made the point about maintenance of coloured surfaces. In respect of authorisation 
they placed the onus on Local Authorities to comply with the regulations, not 
change the purpose or meaning of the legal markings, and to carry out risk 
assessments in relation to the impact on different user groups. 

6.5 The Committee was informed that the cost of installation of a temporary or 
permanent colours or rainbow crossing was estimated at between £5-£10k per site; 
the more complex the arrangements, the higher the cost. Members noted the road 
safety and legal implications as well as understanding that there was no dedicated 
budget for this type of installation. 

6.6 The report concluded that while there were positive benefits to the scheme, there 
were a number of factors that needed to be considered as well as the need to 
identify funding. 

6.7 One member spoke positively about the introduction of a scheme. Kimbrose 
Triangle was an example of an area, which she felt would benefit from this.  She 
made a recommendation that the Committee ask Cabinet to plan the first of these 
schemes in Gloucester City and then roll this out more widely across 
Gloucestershire, bringing back further detail to the next meeting. The member 
stated that nothing in the report had identified legislative or financial reasons why 
this scheme could not be progressed.

6.8 Examples were given of where financial support could be provided through 
highways local and parish and town councils. One member felt that the focus on 
funding in this way would make it a more viable scheme. Another member 
discussed opportunities for more crossings to be provided throughout the County. 

6.9 Some members in response emphasised the importance of not taking road safety 
lightly and to keep this in mind when considering the introduction of any scheme. 
They outlined that any crossing needed to be clearly marked in a way that 
conveyed a road safety message and not to confuse that message. Some members 
were not supportive of the principle of introducing rainbow crossing on roads for 
those reasons, but that the same concerns would not necessarily apply if suitable 
locations could be identified in shared space of pedestrianised areas.

Page 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 6 -

6.10 Officers clarified the importance of a risk assessment being carried out on any site 
proposed for such a scheme.

6.11 One member suggested that the Committee should support the principle of rainbow 
flag crossings in shared spaces and pedestrian areas excluding on roads where it 
would compromise road safety. The committee continued to debate this noting that 
it was for the Cabinet to consider implementation of the scheme and the Chair was 
looking for the Committee to express a view on the principle.

6.12 Noting the recommendation made earlier in the discussion, the Committee voted on 
the principle of rainbow flag crossings. On the Chair’s casting vote the Committee 
agreed with the principle of establishing a rainbow flag crossing scheme, and 
recommended to Cabinet to take this forward with consideration of the views and 
concerns expressed in the debate. 

7. INFORMATION MANAGEMENT 

7.1 The Committee received an overview on the Council’s ‘Requests Management 
function. The Requests Management Team within in Information Management, was 
responsible for ensuring the Council met its statutory obligations with regard to 
request management, but worked with services across the Council to compile 
responses to requests for information. Members noted that over recent years the 
council had seen a steady continuation of Freedom of Information (FOI) and 
Environment Information Regulation (EIR) requests, with an increase in complexity. 
The Council now received around 1600-1700 FOI/EIR requests per year.

7.2 There had also been a rise in the number of subject access requests (SARs) being 
made under the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR). Many service users 
requested this right as a tool to better understand decisions made that directly 
affected them and, on occasion, to hold the council to account. These tended to be 
much more resource-intensive. 

7.3 Members were provided with an outline of the request process. The Committee 
were given examples of how requests often were more complex than they first 
appeared.

7.4 The Council had responded to 72% of all requests within the statutory timescales in 
the past 12 months, compared with 79% in the previous 12 months. The reasons 
for this included the increased complexity of requests as well as the capacity, 
capability and stability of the team and the lack of access to paper records during 
Covid-19 lockdown.

7.5 One of the ways in which the Council aimed to reduce the number of requests was 
to be proactive in its publication of information on its website. 

Page 6



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 7 -

7.6 The Committee was informed of the improvement work that was outlined in the 
report. This included responding to feedback from customers, other council 
departments and external regulators and well as filling vacancies and improving the 
Publication Scheme. 

7.7 In response to a question it was stated that the core team included 9 members of 
staff.

7.8 It was explained that if the FOI request would necessitate work above 18 hours 
then it would be refused, but that a breakdown had to be provided showing how 
that time had been estimated in order to apply the exemption. Information held 
needed to be provided but new information did not need to be created to fulfil 
requests. 

7.9 In 2019, 9% of requests were identifiable as from the media. In response to further 
questions it was explained that other exemptions included personal information 
already accessible by other means; law enforcement (security of systems); and 
commercial interests. The Police did not pay for access to information as it formed 
part of the partnership arrangements. There had been 343 inquiries from the Police 
which represented around 15% of the overall number in 2019.

8. STRATEGIC PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT REPORT 1ST QUARTER 
2020/21 

8.1 Rob Ayliffe provided members with an overview of performance at the end of 
quarter 1 showing 63% of indicators on or ahead of target.

8.2 The Committee noted the performance information in Children’s Services around 
the initial response to risk (such as referral and initial visit), this compared well with 
statistical neighbours. With regards to ‘repeat work’ this was a more challenging 
picture and reflected the improvement needed in the quality of social work. For 
placement stability this was a static position and improvement was needed in both 
short term and long term placements. 

8.3 Members were informed that there had been a slight reduction in the permanent 
admissions (65+) into care within Adult Services.

8.4 It was explained that there had been a reduction in the days lost to sickness. One 
member wished to understand how this was managed when staff were working at 
home. It was explained that staff were in regular contact with managers and if 
unwell that would get reported in the usual way through the Council’s SAP system. 

8.5 Highways performance had showed improvement, with it suggested that this could 
be due to quieter roads during lockdown allowing work to be completed. 

8.6 The number of people reported as killed and seriously injured on the County’s 
roads continued to e higher than historic levels. It was believed that changes to 

Page 7



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 8 -

Police recording methodology was a contributing factor Work was going on with the 
road safety team to see if there are other underlying factors. Additional information 
would be provided on this data including incidents in relation to cars and cyclists as 
well as a response to a members’ question on the impact of the removal of the 
Road Safety Partnership. 
ACTION Colin Chick

8.7 In response to a question, it was explained that the risk management information in 
the papers showed historic trend of risk and this, alongside the information in the 
next quarter’s report, would demonstrate changing risk in relation to Covid-19.

9. PERFORMANCE REPORT - CORPORATE RESOURCES 1ST QUARTER 
2020/21 

9.1 Steve Mawson introduced the performance report for the first quarter which showed 
that overall sickness levels were at the lowest levels for five financial years. 
Workforce stability was good with staff turnover remaining low.

9.2 The Forecast Revenue Outturn percentage variance was 3.3% of the net budget. 
The current forecast of the year end revenue position was £15.707 million 
overspend against the revenue budget of £468.183 million. The forecast excluding 
Covid-19 related spend was a £4.116 million overspend.

9.3 It was noted that a high proportion of staff appraisals had not been completed by 
the end of June which was understandable during the period of change relating to 
Covid-19, but that performance in this area had picked up and would be prioritised 
in the coming weeks and months.

CHAIRMAN

Meeting concluded at 12:55

Page 8



Overview of Corporate Performance 

Quarter 2 

2020/21 

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee  

27th November 2020 

Presented by Rob Ayliffe 

 

P
age 9

A
genda Item

 5



Overview of performance at the end of Quarter 2 

49% (26) 

48% (25) 

42% (22) 

62% (36) 

69% (41) 

13% (7) 

19% (10) 

17% (9) 

9% (5) 

8% (5) 

38% (20) 

33% (17) 

40% (21) 

29% (17) 

23% (14) 

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

2019/20 Q2

2019/20 Q3

2019/20 Q4

2020/21 Q1

2020/21 Q2

Proportion of Corporate Performance Indicators On or Ahead,  Within Tolerance or Behind Target  

On or Ahead of Target Within Tolerance (0 - 5% Behind Target) ≥ 5% Behind Target 

P
age 10



Children’s Services – Initial Response to Risk 

92% 
86% 

84% 

70% 

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Q2 2019/20 Q3 2019/20 Q4 2019/20 Q1 2020/21 Q2 2020/21

Initial Decisions

Initial Visits

Single Assessments

ICPCsP
age 11



Children’s Services - Placement Stability 

17% 18% 20% 18% 17% 
9.8% 

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Q2
2019/20

Q3
2019/20

Q4
2019/20

Q1
2020/21

Q2
2020/21

Statistical
Neighbour

Average
2018/19

Children in care who have had 3 or more 
placements within 12 months 

% 3 or more placements Target

60% 61% 64% 60% 61% 
70.1% 

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Q2
2019/20

Q3
2019/20

Q4
2019/20

Q1
2020/21

Q2
2020/21

Statistical
Neighbour

Average
2018/19

Children in care for at least 2.5 yrs and in the same 
placement for 2 yrs or more 

% same placement for more than 2 yrs Target

Bigger is better Smaller is better 

P
age 12



Childrens Services – Repeat Work 

30% 

33% 

19% 
0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Q2 2019/20 Q3 2019/20 Q4 2019/20 Q1 2020/21 Q2 2020/21

Re-referrals

Repeat CP

ReadmissionsP
age 13



Adult Services – Balance of Care 

P
age 14



Adult Services – Reviews/Reassessments 

57% 

50% 

36% 
32% 

48% 

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Q2 2019/20 Q3 2019/20 Q4 2019/20 Q1 2020/21 Q2 2020/21

% of service users who have had a review/reassessment of their needs within the last 12 months Target

P
age 15



Adult Services – Reablement 

85% 85% 
89% 90% 91% 

36% 
29% 

33% 

24% 
32% 

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Q2 2019/20 Q3 2019/20 Q4 2019/20 Q1 2020/21 Q2 2020/21

% clients who need no long
term care after reablement

Repeat reablement episodes
in 12 months

P
age 16



Prevention & Wellbeing – Alcohol, Opiate & Non-Opiate 

Treatment 

38% 39% 40% 39% 37% 

7.5% 7.5% 7.4% 6.2% 5.9% 

33% 33% 35% 33% 32% 

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Q1 2019/20 Q2 2019/20 Q3 2019/20 Q4 2019/20 Q1 2020/21

% of adult alcohol misusers who have
left treatment successfully

% of all Opiate users not representing
within 6 months of completion of
treatment

% of all Non-Opiate users not
representing within 6 months of
completion of treatment

P
age 17



EE&I – Renewable Energy Generation and Carbon 

Emissions 

21,842 65,928 

11,587,026 

28,054,687 

13,692,113 

0

5000000

10000000

15000000

20000000

25000000

30000000

Q1 2019/20 Q2 2019/20 Q3 2019/20 Q4 2019/20 Q1 2020/21

Renewable energy (000' Kwh) from the Council 
estate (excl. schools) 

1,550 
2,846 

5,306 

7,777 

1,151 
0

2000

4000

6000

8000

10000

Q1 2019/20 Q2 2019/20 Q3 2019/20 Q4 2019/20 Q1 2020/21

Council carbon emissions, buildings and transport 
(excl. schools) tonnes of CO2e 

Tonnes of CO2e Target

P
age 18



EE&I - Highways Performance 

78% 
88% 

74% 

All measures 99% 

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Q2 2019/20 Q3 2019/20 Q4 2019/20 Q1 2020/21 Q2 2020/21

% of 2-hour emergency repairs made on time % of 24-hour defects repaired on time

% of 28-day defects repaired or made safe in time

P
age 19



EE&I - Number of Killed and Seriously Injured People 

90 

83 
80 

85 

48 

0

20

40

60

80

100

Q1 2019/20 Q2 2019/20 Q3 2019/20 Q4 2019/20 Q1 2020/21

P
age 20



GFRS – Rate of Safe and Well Visits per 1,000 

population 

2.24 2.13 1.72 
0.27 0.82 

2.25 2.60 

0

5

10

15

20

Q
2

 2
0

1
9

/2
0

Q
3

 2
0

1
9

/2
0

Q
4

 2
0

1
9

/2
0

Q
1

 2
0

2
0

/2
1

Q
2

 2
0

2
0

/2
1

St
at

is
ti

ca
l N

ei
gh

b
o

u
rs

(Q
u

ar
te

rl
y 

A
ve

ra
ge

2
0

1
8

/1
9

)

En
gl

an
d

 (
Q

u
ar

te
rl

y
A

ve
ra

ge
 2

0
1

8
/1

9
)

P
age 21



Good Management – Days Lost to Sickness per FtE 

1.98 
2.45 

2.09 
1.36 1.09 

8.1 
8.68 8.59 

7.88 

7.04 

10.7 

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

Q2 2019/20 Q3 2019/20 Q4 2019/20 Q1 2020/21 Q2 2020/21 National Average
2018/19

In Quarter Rolling Year

P
age 22



Good Management – % of official requests for information 

released within the legal time limit  

85% 

67% 

76% 

66% 
71% 

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Q2 2019/20 Q3 2019/20 Q4 2019/20 Q1 2020/21 Q2 2020/21

P
age 23



Risk 

P
age 24



7
10
12
3
5
6
20

1

P
age 25



2

P
age 26



3

P
age 27



4

P
age 28



5

P
age 29



6

P
age 30



7

P
age 31



8

P
age 32



9

P
age 33



10

P
age 34



    

    

11

P
age 35



12

P
age 36



13

P
age 37



14

P
age 38



15

P
age 39



8.8

16

P
age 40



17

P
age 41



18

P
age 42



19

P
age 43



20

P
age 44



21

P
age 45



22

P
age 46



23

P
age 47



24

P
age 48



25

P
age 49



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1

Financial Monitoring Report 2020/21
Purpose of Report:  To provide an update on the County Council's Revenue & Capital   

outturn expenditure for 2020/21.

Officer:                      Paul Blacker, Director of Finance (01452) 3258999
                Paul.blacker@gloucestershire.gov.uk

Revenue Expenditure 2020/21

A. Revenue Forecast Outturn Position 2020/21

1. The current forecast of the year end revenue position against a budget of £468.183 million, 
based on actual expenditure at the end of August 2020 (Period 5) and forecasts in 
September (Period 6) is a £7.649 million overspend.  The forecast excluding Covid-19 
related spend is a £4.115 million overspend.

2. As in previous months the largest non-COVID budget variance is the £7.422 million 
forecast overspend in Children and Families. This is an improvement on the previous 
month’s forecast of £1.988 million which is largely due to the reclassification of costs which 
were previously regarded as non-COVID but are now classified as COVID related spend. 

3. In previous years similar overspends have been offset by savings within other areas, 
notably Technical & Countywide. However this option has been eroded in the last few 
years as budgetary contingencies have been used to balance the base budget – the 
current forecast underspend in Technical and Countywide is £3.056 million in 2020/21. In 
order to reduce this forecast non-COVID overspend of £4.115 million all service areas are 
examining current spending plans and the Executive Director of Corporate Resources has 
initiated a review of Earmarked Reserves. Any remaining overspend at the year end will 
need to be funded from General Reserves.  Currently General Reserves are £18.846 
million or 4.03% of the net revenue budget.

4. The Council’s forecast cost of responding to the Covid-19 pandemic (excluding 
expenditure funded from specific grants) is £34.959 million in 2020/21 compared to the 
current Covid19 Emergency Grant allocation of £31.425 million. So a COVID related 
overspend of £3.534 million.   

5. On 2nd July the Government announced a scheme to reimburse local authorities for 75p in 
the pound of fees and charges income lost as a direct result of Covid19 lockdown 
restrictions. Detailed guidance on how the scheme will work has now been released and a 
claim for lost income in the first 4 months of the financial year has now been submitted. 
The actual amount claimed will not be known until the end of the financial year when 
actual income figures are confirmed however current estimates are that the Council will 
receive approximately £3.5 million for the whole of 2020/21. 

6. If this lost income grant funding is received at the anticipated level it will be sufficient to 
cover the COVID related overspend of £3.534 million.  

7. In addition to the £31.425 million of COVID Emergency Grant the Council has also 
received other ring fenced Covid-19 related grant funding most notably:

Page 51

Agenda Item 6

mailto:Paul.blacker@gloucestershire.gov.uk


2

Other ring fenced Covid-19 related grant £m
Infection Control Grant (Includes the recently 
confirmed second tranche of £6.621 million) 14.373

Test & Trace 2.222
Department for Transport (DfT)Covid-19 Bus 
Service Support Grant 0.691Emergency Assistance Grant for Food and 
Essential Supplies from the Department for 
Environment, Food & Rural Affairs (DEFRA) 0.558
Home to School Transport capacity grant from the 
Department for Education (DfE). 0.550
DFT Emergency Active Travel Fund (EATF) 
Tranche 1 0.111

Total other ring fenced Covid-19 related grant 18.505

8. The assumption in this report is that relevant expenditure will be limited to the value of 
these ring fenced grants – any underspend will either need to be returned or carried 
forward to be spent in accordance with the grant conditions in future years.

9. In total the Council has currently been allocated £49.930 million of COVID related grants.

10. In early October MHCLG announced a £1 billion fourth tranche of Covid Emergency Grant 
funding – on 22nd October the GCC allocation was agreed at £2.421 million. This additional 
grant funding will be incorporated into next month’s figures. In additional the Department of 
Health and Social Care announced new allocations for local authorities from the existing 
Contain Management Outbreak Management Fund to support the new three tier COVID 
classification rules. The funding is intended to fund public health activities such as 
proactive containment and intervention measures – it will be distributed at a level of £1 per 
head of population in areas with a Medium alert level, £3 per head for those areas 
classified as High and £8 per head for those areas classified as Very High. 

11.This Council along with other national bodies and organisations are continuing to lobby 
central government to provide additional grant funding if costs escalated beyond current 
forecasts in the second half of the financial year.

12.An analysis of the current forecast position is provided in the table and narrative below.

Page 52



3

Directorate Breakdown for Cabinet Report - Position September 2020 (P6)

Variance

 Additional 
Budget -
Covid-19

Revised 
2020/21 
Budget

%
Forecast 

excluding 
Covid-19

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 % £000 £000

Adults 162,901 0 162,901 180,567 17,666 10.84% 17,666 0 

Prevention & Wellbeing 34,656 0 34,656 36,119 1,463 4.22% 1,714 -251 

Children & Families 129,925 0 129,925 144,536 14,611 11.25% 7,189 7,422 

Economy, Environment & Infrastructure 81,129 0 81,129 87,637 6,508 8.02% 6,508 0 

Community Safety 22,194 0 22,194 22,572 378 1.70% 429 -51 

Corporate Resources 36,374 0 36,374 37,878 1,504 4.13% 1,453 51 

Corporate Resources Recharges -36,374 0 -36,374 -36,374 0 0.00% 0 0 

Total for Services 430,805 0 430,805 472,935 42,130 9.78% 34,959 7,171 

Technical & Countywide 37,378 0 37,378 34,322 -3,056 -8.18% 0 -3,056 

Total 468,183 0 468,183 507,257 39,074 8.35% 34,959 4,115 

Additional Funding Covid-19 to be 
allocated 0 31,425 31,425 0 -31,425 -31,425 

Revised Total 468,183 31,425 499,608 507,257 7,649 1.63% 3,534 4,115 

Covid-19 
ForecastService Area

2020/21 
Budget

Forecast 
Outturn 
Position

Forecast 
Outturn 

Variance

Adult Social Care 

13.Adult Social Care is reporting an underlying overspend of £18.036 million which 
includes £17.666 million for estimated COVID-19 costs.  Excluding the COVID-19 costs 
the underlying overspend is £567k. The non-COVID overspend can be covered by 
Vulnerable Adults Reserve therefore Adult Social Care is forecasting a balance position 
– excluding COVID-19 spend.

14.Adult Social Care reserves currently stand at £6.427 million.  The reserves continue to 
be held as Vulnerable Adults Reserve at £2.665 million with the balance specifically set 
aside for the backdated element of new Ordinary Residence cases and additional 
commitments relating to the National Living Wage and the Care Act.

Page 53



4

15.There continues to be a number of significant risks that are ongoing which mainly relate 
to COVID-19 and legal advice received on S117 backdated payments, as well as the 
Adult Single Programme (ASP) with an MTFS cost reduction targets of £4.799 million.

16.The forecast cost of responding to Covid-19 within Adults is currently forecast to be 
£17.666 million. This is made up of the following items:

 £8.588 million of additional support to care providers
 £2.665 million of additional demand as a result of Covid-19
 £0.847 million additional workforce spend
 £1.821 million on PPE
 £2.900 million of unachievable MTFS savings
 £0.813 million lost income

17.Learning Disabilities (LD) External Care is projecting a £1.030 million underspend.  The 
LD underspend includes, as a net total, delivery of 148% of the 2020/21 ASP cost 
reduction targets. This overachievement is a result of backdated costs recovered from 
previous years and the early achievement of savings scheduled for next financial year.

18.Older People (OP) and Physical Disabilities (PD) External Care is projecting a £3.008 
million overspend.  The overspend is split across individual service budgets with OP 
showing as £2.449 million and PD £559k. The OP/PD overspend assumes 100% 
delivery of 2020/21 ASP cost reduction targets - £2.060 million is included within the 
forecast although slippage is anticipated due to COVID-19.  Identifying the impact is 
complex at this time.  The overspend mainly relates to the unachieved cost reductions 
from 2019/20 and the brought forward underlying financial position, and voids relating 
to homes run by a major provider.

19.The Mental Health position of a £2.667 million overspend as calculated by the 
Gloucestershire Health and Care NHST Finance Team, net of unallocated MTFS 
growth and savings held by the Lead Commissioner.  No actions are built into the 
forecast to address the underlying overspend in this financial year, although a plan is 
being developed with Gloucestershire Health and Care NHST.

20. Included in the Mental Health position is an additional £439k for s117 supported 
accommodation back payments which Gloucestershire Health and Care NHST has 
formally notified us that after taking legal advice they can not fund this cost.

21.The Community Equipment Service (CES) Pooled Budget is reported as on budget. 
Any underlying shortfall is being covered by the Disabled Facilities Grant.     

22.Other Services comprise of all staffing budgets for Adult Social Care, as well as a 
number of specific commissioned contracts. The forecast position for these services 
nets to a £6.485 million overspend including significant variances:

Page 54



5

a. £9.322 million significant overspends: £7.377 million is COVID-19 
Provider Relief Support and would be expected to net to nil due to 
Government Funding; £786k reablement saving allocation not yet 
addressed/confirmed (see comments below); £859k COVID-19 
expenditure mainly relating to PPE; £300k Thriving Communities 
additional staff cost relating to COVID-19.

b. £2.793 million significant underspends: £786k for the OP/PD 
Reablement Service managed by Gloucestershire Health and Care 
NHST is due to vacancies (see above); £325k Safeguarding; £1.082 
million OP/PD Integrated Social Care Management (ISCM) due 
largely to vacancies; and £601k LD Assessment, Support Planning & 
Management mainly due to vacancies. 

Prevention and Wellbeing 

23.Services within this area include Public Health, Supporting People and a number 
of smaller budgets covering the prevention hub team and grants. In total 
Prevention Services (including £1.714 million of COVID-19 expenditure) are 
£1.463 million over-spent. 

24.The Council has also received a grant for £2.222 million to support Test and 
Trace activities and plans are in place to deliver on this requirement.

25.The underlying non-COVID-19 position for Prevention and Well Being is a £530k 
under-spend. Public Health services are funded by a ring-fenced grant, which if 
unspent is required to be carried forward in a specific reserve. The Public Health 
position, excluding COVID-19 expenditure, is forecast to be £279k under-spent 
and this will be transferred to the PH reserve at year end. Therefore the forecast 
non-COVID-19 underspend net of the transfer to the PH Reserve is £251k.

26.Additional expenditure for COVID-19 covers three key areas, shelter for the 
homeless, additional commissioned mental health services and mortuary 
planning costs. 

27.The in-year forecast for Public Health is an under spend of £279k due to lower 
commitments for health checks and sexual health testing as fewer people are 
accessing the service but this is offset by the additional costs of Agenda for 
Change pay uplifts on contracts with NHS staff. The impact of COVID-19 on the 
provision of services is uncertain so there is a risk that the Agenda for Change 
cost pressure (circa £337k) will not be offset by other services. 

Page 55



6

Children & Families

28.The current forecast for the year end revenue position as at September 2020 for non-
DSG funded services is an over-spend of £14.611 million (11.24% of budget). Included 
within these figures is the forecast additional cost of the impact of COVID-19 on 
budgets which totals £7.189 million giving an underlying over-spend of £7.422 million, 
which includes a contingency of £3.208 million for new external placements. Significant 
over-spends include external placements and home to school transport both of which 
were identified as ongoing pressures at the end of 2019/20.

29.Additional forecast expenditure for the impact of COVID-19 covers five key areas which 
are external placement costs, home to school transport, transitions for care leavers, 
staffing and support to vulnerable pupils once schools recommence. In some areas it is 
difficult to identify what costs are related to the impact of COVID-19 so a further £2 
million is being used to offset forecast costs since there is likely to be a significant 
impact on social care and education services when lockdown measures are eased. 

30.Activity levels within social care continue to cause significant budgetary pressures on 
children’s services and in particular against the external placement and safeguarding 
staff budgets resulting in the over-spend. At the end of August 2020 children in care 
numbers were 775 compared to 722 at the end of April 2019.

31.The current forecast over-spend against the external placement budget is £8.916 
million (33.5% above budget). This includes a contingency of £3.208 million for new 
cases in-year to allow for additional placements to replace existing care commitments 
or for higher number of placements due to increased activity; the forecast also includes 
an additional £2.6 million for the current and future impact of COVID-19 on placement 
numbers. The current forecast average unit cost of a placement is £105,400 per 
annum, (residential/supported living average unit cost of £175,300). There are currently 
392 external placements, of which 98 are residential and 89 supported living 
placements. 

32.At this stage in the year the forecast has to be based on a lot of assumptions in terms 
of growth in activity, delays in transitions, capacity in the fostering market both in-house 
and external and the impact of opening of Trevone House providing additional capacity 
for young people. Assumptions will be reviewed on a monthly basis and adjusted 
accordingly. Improving social care practice to divert children from care at an earlier 
point and achieve permanence at the earliest opportunity will reduce numbers of 
children in care costs in the longer term.

33.Against safeguarding staffing budgets there is a forecast over-spend of £1.641 million 
(8.1% above budget) which includes £400k as a contingency for additional staffing 
capacity to respond to any spike in activity from September onwards. Improved 
processes for recruitment, more effective advertising and the support and training 
provided by the social work academy is improving the stability of the workforce. 
Turnover of staff has been between 12.5% and 14.6% over the last six months and at 

Page 56



7

the end of August there were 97 agency workers in post, a significant reduction from 
over 180 two years ago. As the newly qualified staff that have been appointed over the 
last year gain experience, the number of agency staff is expected to reduce.  

34. In addition to this, Young People’s Support is forecasting a £497k over-spend due to 
the additional cost of agency staff covering vacancies which will reduce as permanent 
staff are appointed. £192k relates to COVID-19 expenditure.

35.Home to school transport is reporting an over-spend of £2.762 million (which includes a 
£1.34 million estimate for the impact on service provision of COVID-19 from September 
onwards which has been offset be a specific grant of £550k. The exact cost will depend 
on the implementation of government guidance on social distancing from September 
2020 onwards). The underlying cost pressure is due to the rise in demand and cost of 
SEN provision, the number of solo journeys required and the increased cost of 
procuring new routes. An action plan is in place to address a range of issues and 
reduce costs wherever possible. 

36.Other over-spends include the cost of additional management capacity to continue with 
the safeguarding improvement journey through the COVID-19 period resulting in an 
over-spend of £608k across social care and commissioning and a £500k contingency 
to support vulnerable pupils as they return to school in the autumn. Also there is an 
over-spend of £269k against special guardianships due to a higher than expected 
number of orders and a £320k impact from loss of income across Children’s services 
due to COVID-19.

37.To offset these cost pressures £1.52 million of funding from the MTFS has been held 
back and released to offset the over-spend in year. 

Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) position

38.Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) funded services are forecast to be over-spent by 
£13.555 million in 2020/21, which includes the deficit carry forward of £8.442 million 
and the deficit budget which was set for High Needs of £5.449 million. The deficit 
budget results from setting realistic budgets within high needs services considering 
growth trends and existing activity demands on special school and independent 
provision and top up budgets. The Early Years block is currently forecast to under-
spend by £300k against the budget for free entitlement for nursery places for three and 
four year olds.

39.The budget pressures that Gloucestershire is facing reflect the national picture with 
significant deficits in DSG high needs being held in many Local Authorities. The 
implementation of the High Needs Strategy will be essential to ensure the budget is 
balanced in future years and a spending review of services is in progress with a 
financial recovery plan being reviewed and developed alongside this review.   

Page 57



8

Economy, Environment & Infrastructure  

40.Economy, Environment and Infrastructure are currently forecasting an overspend 
position of £6.508 million (8% of the budget).  This is due to the impact of Covid-19 
related costs or loss of income as set out in the paragraph below. The non-COVID 
forecast is a breakeven position.

41.Loss of income is forecasted to be £5.433 million which is split between £1.085 million 
from Registrations and Libraries, £2.813 million from parking related income, £1.160m 
from sale of electricity.  Increased costs to enable new ways of working safely across 
all areas are forecasted at £698k and unachievable savings caused by Covid-19 is 
forecasted to be £377k.

42.Highways have received a grant of £322k from the DfT for the Emergency Active 
Travel Fund Tranche 1 to be spent against Walking & Cycling schemes. The funding 
has been split between £111k for revenue and £211k for capital which will be spent in 
year and was added to the capital programme as part of the October Cabinet report. 

43.The Integrated Transport team have received an additional £230k of revenue from the 
Department for Transport (DfT) Covid-19 Bus Service Support Grant (CBSSG) classed 
as a restart scheme which will be used to allocate to specific providers based in line 
with the grant conditions.

44.Ash die-back caused by a fungal infection is now affecting Gloucestershire trees - the 
full extent of the infection is currently unknown but the immediate concern for the 
County Council is to protect users of Highways and County Council land from the risks 
posed by dying trees. Therefore £500k was allocated in the current year to address 
these risks and it is anticipated that this will be spent by the end of the year. This 
allocation has proved insufficient to address the issue fully therefore it is proposed to 
create an Ash Die Back Reserve by allocating £700k from the Insurance Fund. Given 
the urgency of addressing this issue and the availability of funding from the Insurance 
Reserve it is recommended that the additional funds are set aside in an earmarked 
reserve now rather than wait for the budget to be approved in February 2021. 

Community Safety Directorate

45.The Community Safety Directorate is forecasting an overspend of £378k (1.19% of 
budget) including estimated costs attributed to COVID 19 of £429k. Excluding Covid-19 
costs, the forecast outturn indicates an underspend of £51k.

46.The Fire and Rescue Service is forecasting an overspend of £345k, of which £416k 
relates to Covid-19, giving an underlying underspend of £71k. £18k has been included 
in the forecast to cover a requested revenue contribution to capital outlay (RCCO) to 
cover additional costs associated with the Workshop HGV and Personal Protective 
Equipment Schemes and a further £43k RCCO is requested funded via a section 31 
fire grant to expand the scope of the Control Mobilising Project. Further details in 
capital section B of this report.

Page 58



9

Corporate Resources

47.Corporate Resources are forecasting an overspend of £1.504 million (4.13% of 
the budget). Included within these figures is the forecast additional cost of the 
impact of COVID-19 on budgets which totals £1.453 million giving an underlying 
overspend of £51k (0.14% of the budget.)

48.The additional forecast expenditure of £1.453 million for the impact of Covid-19 
includes £255k for ICT, £384k in the Asset Management & Property Services 
budgets and £700k against the Legal services budget due to additional children’s 
cases.  

Technical and Countywide

49.The forecast outturn position for Technical and Countywide budgets is a £3.056 million 
underspend (8.18% of budget). The main areas of variance are highlighted in the 
paragraphs below.

50.Positive interest rate credits on cash balances totalling £1.294 million, reflecting better 
diversification of investments and longer term deposits.

51.The 2020/21 budget includes an MtC savings contingency; this was approved by Council 
to reflect the high risk nature of some of the savings programmes in demand led areas in 
2020/21. The full £1.389 million contingency is being declared as an underspend to 
support the overall budget position. 

52.An underspend of £342k within the Capital Financing Budget is now forecast following 
reductions in projected MRP payments due in year following slippage on approved 
capital schemes.

53.The approved budget for 2020/21 included an estimated pay provision for a 2% pay 
award. The final national award for staff has now been agreed at 2.75%. The current 
outturn forecast for Corporate Resources makes a provision for the costs associated with 
funding this additional 0.75% (£976k) for the whole Council. This has been funded from 
in-year savings.

Page 59



10

B. Capital Expenditure

Current Spend 2020/21

54.The capital budget for 2020/21 is £129.874 million. Actual spend against the capital 
programme as at the end of August 2020 (period 5) is £26.770 million.

Budget and Forecast Outturn Position 2020/21

55.The forecast outturn position for 2020/21 is £126.838 million, against the budget of 
£129.874 million, giving forecast in-year slippage of £3.036 million. 

56. It is recommended that the current year budgets are re-profiled to reflect the current 
forecast spend in each service areas and the revised budget set at £126.838 million. 
This ensures the latest figures are included in the MTFS 2021/22.  This doesn’t affect 
the whole life cost of capital schemes.

57.Details of the budgets and forecast year end position, and any significant variances, 
are provided in the table below and the narrative that follows. 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 2020/21

Service Area

Reprofiled 
Budget 
2020/21

Current 
Year 

Spend 
2020/21

% Current 
Year 

Spend 
against 

Reprofiled 
Budget

Forecast 
Outturn 
2020/21

Forecast 
Year-end 
Variance

£000 £000 % £000 £000
Capital Receipts Works Before Sale 0 0 0 0

Adults 11,058 -362 -3 11,058 0

Children & Families 23,165 4,196 18 20,738 -2,427

Economy, Environment & Infrastructure 
Highways 60,220 16,798 28 61,161 941
Strategic Infrastructure 2,926 26 1 2,881 -44
Waste Disposal 530 14 3 580 50
Libraries 359 79 22 407 48
Community Safety
Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service 1,765 763 43 1,411 -354
Trading Standards 39 0 0 39 0
Corporate Services
AMPS 18,332 2,818 15 17,035 -1,297
ICT projects 9,771 2,189 22 9,817 46
Business Service Centre 831 0 0 831 0
Archives & Information Management 51 0 0 51 0
Customer 828 248 30 828 0

Total 129,874 26,770 21 126,838 -3,036

Page 60



11

Children & Families

58.The Children & Families Capital Programme is forecasting in-year slippage of £2.427 
million against the current budget. This is mainly due to a review of the scope of works 
required for Warden Hill Primary school and an ongoing options appraisal at St David’s 
Primary. 

Highways

59.The Highway Capital Programme is currently forecasting an overspend of £941k. This 
relates to structural maintenance schemes where better than expected progress is now 
being made on delivery of some projects. 

60.There are some risks associated with the delivery of the Highways capital programme. 
These include:

 the entire Concrete Roads programme being considered high risk as 
the critical sub-contractor has just gone out of business.

 concerns about the future impact of COVID particularly on the supply 
of materials.

 impacts caused by winter weather
 a number of smaller Integrated Transport schemes are now 

considered high risk as we have been unable to collect realistic traffic 
data due to disrupted traffic patterns

 works at the Bamfulong depot are no longer forecast to start this 
financial year

Community Safety

61.Fire and Rescue is still forecasting slippage of £354k. This relates to the slippage of 
£338k on the Fire Appliances scheme due to the supplier being unable to deliver the 
driver training vehicle in the current year. 

Corporate Resources

62.The Asset Management & Property Services (AMPS) Capital Programme is forecasting 
in-year slippage of £1.297 million - £372k is due to delays in the Area Based Review, 
£500k is due to delays in the Corporate Property Condition Data Works and £425k is 
due to delays in Rural Estates Farm Investment for 2020/21.

Page 61



12

Changes to the Capital Programme in 2020/21 and future years

Highways

63. It is proposed that Cabinet support a net increase of £249.132 million in the Highways 
capital budget as summarised below:

 £249.131 million Homes England Grant funding towards M5 Junction 10 
improvements. 

 £1k Grow Our Communities funding towards a Footway Scheme. 
 £10k developer contribution from Ashchurch bus shelter scheme to be returned 

to the developer. 
 £10k contribution from Frampton-on-Severn parish council towards a 

Community Offer Pedestrian scheme

64.M5 Junction 10 Improvements – The Cabinet report considered on 17th June 2020 
approved £8.629 million of revenue funding to underwrite at risk the revenue costs 
associated with the Outline Business Case (OBC) for this major development prior to 
entering into a formal Grant Determination Agreement (GDA) with Homes England. 
The project is forecast to cost £253.131 million of which Homes England will be 
providing capital grant funding for £249.131 million and the remaining £4 million will 
need to be funded by GCC in the last two years of the contract - 2023/24 and  2024/25 
respectively. The two instalments of £2 million will be funded by MTFS capital bids 
subject to approval in February 2021.

65.The GDA has now been signed so it is recommended to include £249.131 million in the 
capital programme. This amount will be funded by a Homes England Grant. The 
remaining £4 million will be added to the capital programme as part of the MTFS in 
February 2021.

Fire and Rescue

66. It is proposed that Cabinet support a net increase of £61k in the Fire and Rescue 
capital budget as summarised below:

 £2k contribution from the F&R revenue budget towards additional costs for 
Workshop HGV Ramps  

 £16k contribution from the F&R revenue budget towards additional costs for 
Personal Protection Equipment

 £43k contribution from a section 31 F&R revenue grant towards the cost of the 
Control Mobilising Project.

67.Control Mobilising Project. Expanding the scope of the project will improve our 
efficiency and effectiveness through inclusion of:

 Multi Agency Incident Transfer (MAIT) functionality, allowing our internal system to 
converse directly with a new government designed hub that can securely transfer 
incident data between emergency services.

 BOSS mobile, improving mobilisation of operational fire officers and securely sharing 
incident data directly to scene through a mobile device.

 A Gartan Interface, enabling our emergency resource availability software to 
intuitively talk to the new mobilising software, feeding live time updates about 
crewing/resource levels.

Page 62



13

Overall

68.As a result of the above changes, the overall capital programme will increase by 
£249.193 million.

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank



Corporate Performance Report Quarter 1 2020/21

Corporate Resources

1. Human Resources: Overall sickness levels have reduced for the third quarter down from 
2.45 days lost per FtE to 1.09 days; performance is better than target (1.8). This is the lowest 
level of overall sickness for 5 financial years. Over a 12-month period, performance is better 
than the national average (7.04 compared with 8.8 days lost per FtE). Decreasing trends are 
also evident within long term sickness and stress, with some exceptions within Directorates. 

It is likely that the Government’s social distancing regulations, requirements to work from 
home where possible (around 1500 within GCC) and the hand washing awareness campaign 
are all contributing to the reduction of overall sickness.

2. Workforce stability is good, with turnover reducing to 9.2% and below the national average 
(13.4%); this is also reflected in children’s social care where the turnover of Social Workers 
has decreased to 11.2%. This is significantly reduced since 2018/19 and has been broadly 
steady for the previous four quarters. Note that this does not include turnover of agency staff. 

Turnover of adult social workers slightly increased this quarter and remains higher than 
previous quarters (13.0% compared with 10.7% at the same time last year).

3. Completion of annual PDRs is low (20.3), resulting in poor sight of performance levels and 
raising questions about levels of support and clear direction being provided for staff by 
managers. Community Safety and Children’s have the lowest level of completion of appraisals 
(4.3% and 2.3% respectively).

4. ICT: There were three Priority 1 incidents in Quarter 2 (an organisation-wide issue, an issue 
causing an outage or one preventing a large volume of GCC staff from working); this is the 
same as last quarter and performance is meeting target. This is the lowest level of incidents 
for two years. Incidents related to outage of four back up servers, failure to receive incoming 
calls and connectivity issues with Jabber software. 

5. AMPS: Income derived from Capital Receipts is below target due to delays in disposals due to 
COVID (£1.36m against a target of £5m). 

6. Strategic Finance: We continue to hold a healthy level of uncommitted General Reserves at 
4.0% of GCC’s Net Revenue budget (£18.856 million). This remains unchanged from last 
quarter and is on target. There is a commitment to maintaining General Reserves at a 

Page 65

Agenda Item 7



minimum of 4% to ensure that there is capacity to deal with unavoidable and unexpected 
pressures. 

7. Forecast Revenue Outturn Percentage Variance is 1.78% of the net budget. The current 
forecast of the year end revenue position against the revenue budget of £468.183 million, 
based on actual expenditure at the end of September 2020 (Period 6) and forecasts done in 
October (Period 7) is a £8.371 million overspend. The forecast excluding Covid-19 related 
spend is a £4.461 million overspend. 

 As in previous months the largest non-COVID budget variance is the £7.669 million forecast      
overspend in Children and Families. In previous years similar overspends have been offset by 
savings within other areas, notably Technical & Countywide. However this option has been 
eroded in the last few years as budgetary contingencies have been used to balance the base 
budget – the current forecast underspend in Technical and Countywide is £3.056 million in 
2020/21. In order to reduce this overall forecast non-COVID overspend of £4.461 million all 
service areas are examining current spending plans and the Executive Director of Corporate 
Resources has initiated a review of Earmarked Reserves. Any remaining overspend at the 
year end will need to be funded from General Reserves. 

8. Financial pressures relating to COVID and funding levels for Local Authorities are both rated 
as at High risk. GCC continues to inform and lobby central government n order to feed into the 
central spending review, while additional spend associated with COVID-19 is being closely 
monitored and remedial action undertaken.

9. £7.371 million was delivered against the annual savings target of £10.545 (69.9%). However, 
areas of risk relate to £0.150 million in Home to School Transport, £0.307 million savings 
across Economy, Environment & Infrastructure and £0.350 million income from Quayside 
phase one. 

10. SHE: 1 RIDDOR incident was reported in Quarter 2 within the Children’s Directorate, however, 
performance was better than target. The number of RIDDORs are expected to remain low as, 
even if someone sustained an injury that ordinarily would have caused lost working days, with 
around 1500 members of staff working from home, it’s likely that they could continue to work 
from home and thus avoid triggering a RIDDOR. 

11. Governance: There were 2 reports of complaints upheld by the Local Government and Social 
Care Ombudsman within the quarter. This is meeting target.

12. Information Management:  The information management service has faced challenges 
around complexity of demand and resource levels for some time now. This is impacting our 
response timeliness and placing our ability to meet our statutory duties at risk.

While the proportion of official requests for information released within a legal time period has 
increased from 66% last quarter to 71%, performance remains below target for the fourth 
quarter. 

381 requests were completed between July and September, of which 110 delayed. Due to the 
increase of SARs requests and complex FOI’s over previous quarters a backlog has occurred. 
Factors which have contributed to this reduction in performance have been identified. These 
relate to reduced staffing resources, specialist software rollout and a shift in working 
arrangements due to COVID-19 lockdown measures. Additional temporary resources have 
helped to address concerns around timeliness of Official Requests and further temporary 
recruitment is underway.

Page 66



There were 263 information security breaches in Quarter 2, the majority of these are in Adult’s 
and Children’s. 1 security information incident (0.7%) was reported to the Information 
Commissioner’s Office. 

ENDS

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank



PUBLIC PARTICIPATION SCRUTINY TASK GROUP 

November 2020 

1. INTRODUCTION 

 

1.1 At the 13 February 2019 Gloucestershire County Council (GCC) Budget Council, 

an amendment was proposed by Cllr Ward and Cllr R Smith to create a Public 

Participation Officer role dedicated to improving the publics experience of 

engaging with Council meetings and consultations. 

 

1.2 This budget amendment was later withdrawn, subject to a commitment for a task 

group to be set up instead to examine how people engage with the council and 

how engagement could be improved. 

 

1.3 The ambitions for the review were as follows; 

 To understand what GCC does at present in terms of improving public 

participation; 

 To explore how effective these processes are at helping the public to 

meaningfully engage and promote active citizenship; 

 To learn from relevant outside sources and other Local Authorities s to 

identify examples of best practice; and 

 To make recommendations, including any resource implications that would 

enhance public engagement with the Council and its processes (copy of the 

full one page strategy at Annex 1).  

1.4  Membership of the Task Group: Councillors Eva Ward, Stephen Hirst, Shaun 

Parsons, Lesley Williams, Rachel Smith and Kate Haigh. Councillor Eva Ward 

was appointed as chair. 

1.5 The group met three times from November 2019 to February 2020 to develop 

their understanding of how GCC performed in this year currently, and explore 

examples of how this could be improved. Following the Covid-19 pandemic the 

group paused its work, reconvening in September 2020. The group reflected on 

the changes in working practice over that time and lessons learned with regards 

to public participation. 

 

 

2 CURRENT PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

 

2.1 Members discussed with officers from Democratic Services the current levels of 

participation in the democratic process and what potential barriers there may be 

to increasing participation. Members noted that the Council allows public 

questions at full Council and Cabinet meetings. At every full council meeting, 30 

minutes was dedicated to public questions. A full overview of procedure for 

public questions can be found under Part 4, Procedural Standing Orders, and 

Section 8 of the Council’s constitution.   

 

Page 69

Agenda Item 8



2.2 As with the majority of councils in England, the County Council runs a petitions 

scheme and petitions may be submitted by residents. They should have at least 

25 signatures for a response and must include: clear and concise statements 

covering the subject of the petition and include details of what action the 

petitioners wish the Council to take, the name, the address in Gloucestershire 

where they live, work or study and signature of any person supporting the 

petition. Petitions must reach 5000 signatures to be scheduled for debate at full 

council. Petitions may be rejected if they are considered to be vexatious, abusive 

or otherwise inappropriate. E-petitions can also be made through the county 

council website. 

 

2.3 County council meetings are livestreamed via webcam and officers were 

currently planning to roll out webcam access to the Cabinet Suite to enable 

Cabinet meetings and more scrutiny committees to be livestreamed. Full council 

meetings typically had the most views. During the Covid-19 pandemic, council 

meetings have been held virtually using web-ex software. This has allowed 

members to access the meeting from their own homes with the meetings 

streamed on YouTube. 

 

2.4 The Health Overview Scrutiny Committee has also run a pilot for opportunities 

for public representation. Members of the public must write to Democratic 

Services with their intention to speak three working days before a meeting and 

they will have three minutes to speak on a relevant matter or ask a question. 

 

2.5  Members spoke to the Communications Team to understand engagement 

through social media and consultations. This served to improve understanding of 

the current context and examine how effectively social media and consultations 

were used to encourage public participation.  

 

2.6 Communications produce several e-newsletters for residents focused on a range 

of topics. A mailing list specifically for consultations had 3,120 subscribers as of 

January 2020. Consultations impacting a particular topic such as schools would 

also be sent out through additional relevant mailing list e.g. school updates. All 

consultations are also sent to town and parish council clerks and major 

consultations sent out to those subscribed to news and updates bulletins, 7,660 

subscribers as of January 2020. 

 

  

 

3. CONSULTATION 

3.1 Details of major consultations are also added to the Council’s website and sent to 

media contacts, generally via a press release. 

 

3.2 Gloucestershire County Council uses Twitter and Facebook as its primary social 

media platforms to share information on consultations and other relevant 

information and updates. The council’s corporate Twitter account has 18,990 

Page 70



followers on Twitter as of December 2019 and the average engagement ratio was 

6.32 users per tweet. On Facebook, the council corporate page has 4,130 likes 

and an average engagement ratio of 1.43 per post.  

 

3.3 Details of consultations are also shared via other routes that are specific/ relevant 

to the geographical or subject matter being consulted on. 

 

3.4 The Council engages the Consultation Institute to both review its overall 

consultation process and or advice and support on specific matters on an ad-hoc 

basis. 

3.5 The group decided that it would be beneficial to review a recent example of a 

county wide consultation, to inform recommendations for development of 

consultation and participation processes. The Local Transport Plan Review 

consultation was taking place at the time of the third task group meeting in 

February 2020. An officer from transport planning was invited to brief the group on 

the consultation process and answer questions. 

 The public consultation on the draft Local Transport Plan utilised both online 

surveys and public events across the county. The online survey ran for ten 

weeks and was publicised through GCC social media, local media, mailing 

lists, libraries and district and parish councils. A full analysis of responses is 

due to be published in April.  

 

 Two drop in events and one evening event have been held in each district. At 

drop in events, members of the public can ‘opt in’ for further contact so they 

can give further input or can be informed on how their feedback is being used. 

A launch event for councillors was also held in January. 

 

 The group shared their own observations of events that they had attended 

and noted that there was at times little staff capacity to run different sections, 

for example an officer giving a presentation on the draft plan and then 

immediately moving to chair a question and answer session. Questions were 

also raised on how the locations of drop in events were chosen and what the 

input of councillors and local residents was in these decisions. It was felt that 

involving the public and councillors at different tiers of local government early 

in the process means that the process can be shaped to be inclusive and 

responsive to the needs of communities. 

  

 Officers in transport planning were supported by communications to develop 

a consultation plan and to analyse the results when completed. However, 

capacity for ongoing support could be limited due to the workloads of both 

teams.  

3.6 The Group noted that on some decisions there was an obligation to consult and that 

consultation was the foundation of good governance.  It was important to consult in a 

variety of ways according to a strategy that allowed a wide cross section of the 

Page 71



community to be reached. Members emphasised the importance of tailoring 

consultations to enable those ‘hard to reach’ communities the ability to respond.  The 

group discussed consultation alongside engagement techniques such as citizen’s 

juries and people assemblies to highlight that the approach had to be flexible. 

Members received reassurance that a balanced approach was taken that took into 

account those strong views on a topic as well as those from stakeholders with a more 

neutral perspective. 

 

 

 

4. IMPROVING PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

4.1 The group noted the good work that was taking place both in allowing members of 

the public to engage with the democratic process through participation in meetings 

and petitions. In addition members appreciated the work of the Communication 

Team in reviewing processes and looking to continue to evolve the consultation 

process. Members considered what could be done to help move those processes 

forward and add value. 

4.2 In January, the chair and a democratic services support officer attended a 

conference on participatory democracy to learn from other local authorities and 

bring effective examples of participatory and deliberative democracy to the group 

to inform recommendations and future work.  

 An example of deliberative democracy which featured heavily at the 

conference was Citizens’ Assemblies. A citizens’ assembly is a group of 

people who are brought together to discuss an issue or issues and reach a 

conclusion about what they think should happen. The people who take part 

are chosen so they reflect the wider population – in terms of demographics 

(e.g. age, gender, ethnicity, social class) and sometimes relevant attitudes 

(e.g. preferences for a small or large state). These had been used by some 

borough and metropolitan borough authorities such as Dudley and London 

Boroughs.  

 

 Another key point of learning was that local authorities needed to think and do 

things creatively to engage with citizens, particularly from groups who were 

less likely to engage through the current routes. An example noted was 

Calderdale Council who began wide scale public conversations through 

online means and by officers starting conversations with residents in busy 

public areas such as shopping centres. Feedback and conversations are 

used to inform Vision 2024 for the area. 

 

 It was felt within the group that a conference held within Gloucestershire 

would help all tiers of local government to learn from each other and look at 

what good participation looks like in Gloucestershire.  

Page 72



 

4.3 The group raised the question of how areas within Gloucester and Cheltenham, 

which do not have parish councils, are brought together and engaged in democratic 

and consultation processes. Another point raised was how the council could utilise 

new social media platforms which young people were more likely to use to engage 

more young people in local democracy. 

4.4 Members raised the issue of presentation of information. It was felt that this was an 

area that could be improved. Better presentation of the message and opportunities 

for engagement would help to encourage a response from the public. It was 

recognised that any conversation was a two way process. 

4.5 The group noted that members of the public were required to be physically present at 

full council meetings to ask a supplementary question to any question they submitted 

prior to the meeting. Members identified this as a barrier for some, particularly those 

who work during the day as council meetings are typically held between 10am and 

4pm. A question was also raised as to whether representation could be expanded to 

public statements as well as questions, and whether members could have the right to 

reply to correct anything said which may be inaccurate. It was also noted that 

methods of asking questions and making representations were not often publicised 

or promoted, which hindered appropriate public participation.  

4.6 The group noted that in recent months the virtual meetings have allowed members of 

the public to ask their question without being physically present at the meeting and it 

is important that this flexibility is not lost when the Council returns to face to face 

meetings. Consideration could be given to supplementary questions being asked via 

video, telephone or by nomination of a person to ask a question on their behalf. 

4.7 During the Covid-19 lockdown, local authorities ran online question time sessions 

with Cabinet members and officers and this might continue to be a useful tool going 

forward. 

4.8 Members discussed the developments in home working and remote access to 

meetings that has been necessitated by the pandemic and subsequent lockdown.   

These tools should enhance the ways in which the public can engage and participate 

within the democratic process without looking to replace opportunities for face to face 

engagement.  

4.9 Members suggested that regular notifications of new petitions could be sent to all 

members to help monitor the effectiveness of the promotion of how to submit 

petitions   

4.10 The public representation pilot at the Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee has 

been received well and representations have been received on a range of issues, 

from mental health services to pharmacy planning. Members felt that other scrutiny 

committees would benefit from having a similar item on their agendas and that this 

would provide the public with an opportunity to ask questions on the topic that were 

resonated more strongly with them. Scrutiny should include topics where there is a 

Page 73



strong public mandate for action and this would allow members to be better informed 

when considering topics for their work plans.  

 

 

5. RECOMMENDATIONS 

In response to the above evidence gathering, the task group make the following 

recommendations and conclusions to Cabinet: 

 

A. To ensure that the facility of public questions at meetings of County Council, Cabinet 

and other committee meetings are clearly outlined on the website and that there is 

appropriate promotion through the Council’s Communications Team. 

 

B. Notifications of petitions received to be sent to members regularly via 

communications channels such as the Members Matters weekly update (updated 

and maintained on the Members’ website). 

 

C. That a review be carried out of the Consultation processes including how feedback 

from councillors and members of the public can help to ensure they are carried out 

more effectively. 

 

D. That the Communications Team continue to work on improving how information is 

presented. 

 

E. Review the County’s Community Charter, which sets out the way engagement is 

carried out between the county council and communities (such as through town and 

parish councils). This review will include gathering intel and insight of approaches to 

consultation and engagement and will allow all residents to benefit from the offer. 

 

In addition the task group wishes to recommend to Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee that: 

F. The public representation pilot being carried out by Health Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee be made a standing item and expanded to all other scrutiny committees. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 74



ANNEX 1 - ONE PAGE STRATEGY 

SCRUTINY REVIEW – ONE PAGE STRATEGY 

Broad topic area Public Participation (Accountability/Transparency) 

Specific topic 

area 

Public Engagement 

How do people engage in Council, Cabinet and scrutiny procedures and how 

can it be improved? 

 

Ambitions for the 

review 

 

 

 

 

 

Understand what GCC does at present 

Explore how effective these processes are at helping the public to meaningfully 

engage and promote active citizenship 

Learn from relevant outside sources and other LAs to identify  examples of best 

practice 

Make  recommendations, including any resource implications that would 

enhance  public engagement with the Council and its processes 

 

How do we 

perform at the 

moment? 

 

 

 

 

Response rates to consultations/surveys on important community decisions 

(such as library moves) 

Consider what data can be published 

Webcasting meetings and trialling public representations at Health and Care 

Overview and Scrutiny 

Public questions at Council/Cabinet 

‘Inform Gloucestershire’, MAIDEN and JSNA 

“30k local residents get updates” via a range of  newsletters 

 

Who and how 

should we 

consult? 

Communications team  

Other LAs and relevant organisations (eg Kirklees Democracy Commission) 

Current Members (community engagement) 

Chair of HCOSC to ascertain success of public representations at meetings 

Members of the public (opinions obtained via elected representatives at Council, 

district and parish levels)  

Democratic Services Team 

 

Background 

information 

Amendment proposed at Council on the 13th of February to create an Officer role 

regarding public participation. A commitment to a task group was given instead 

Page 75

https://twitter.com/GlosCC/status/1113124291187372032
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/g9139/Printed%20minutes%20Wednesday%2013-Feb-2019%2010.00%20County%20Council.pdf?T=1


 

 

Recent scrutiny review explored how the public participated at these meetings 

and has suggested some changes, this task group provides a chance to analyse 

their success and explore new options 

 

Support Support from Communications and Democratic Services 

 

How long will it 

take? 

6 months from approval 

 

Outcomes Recommendations linked to  supporting members of the public to meaningfully 

engage in decision making 

Recommendations to improve the availability of information and transparency in 

decision-making, at all levels 

Page 76



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Gloucestershire County Council 

Scrutiny Annual Report 

2019-20 

 

Page 77

Agenda Item 9



Contents 

 

1 Introduction: Cllr Shaun Parsons 

2 Scrutiny Structure 

3 Activities and outcomes 

4 Summary: Simon Harper 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 78



Introduction 

The role that overview and scrutiny can play in holding an 

authority’s decision-makers to account makes it fundamentally 

important to the successful functioning of local democracy. 

 

Effective scrutiny helps secure the efficient delivery of public 

services and drives improvements within the Council and, if 

done well, amongst other public service providers too. 

Conversely, poor scrutiny can be indicative of wider 

governance, leadership and service failures.  

 

It is right that we as a Council continue to evaluate our 

scrutiny arrangements and reflect on the successes and 

challenges within scrutiny over the past 12 – 18 months. This report includes details of the 

scrutiny activities and outcomes, including responses to recommendations made from our 

significant task group activity. In addition it provides a health check for scrutiny in light of the 

previous review of our arrangements.  

This previous review itself stemmed from a peer challenge in June 2018 which had identified 

the need to ensure effective and transparent challenge by reviewing the structure and impact 

of the Council’s scrutiny arrangements. It was recommended that members should be 

equipped with the necessary skills and tools and that the review should reinforce and 

support good effective governance.  

A review of the Council’s scrutiny arrangements was undertaken from September 2018 

through to recommendations being made to full Council in March 2019.  These 

recommendations included key principles for scrutiny and a consensus of opinion on a 

number of working practices. A new scrutiny structure was also put in place which included a 

new Adult Social Care and Communities Scrutiny Committee and the establishment of a 

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee in place of Overview and Scrutiny 

Management Committee. This structure also led to remit changes for Health Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

As part of this review the decision was made to separate adult social care from Health 

Scrutiny in order to ensure there was sufficient time available to properly scrutinise these 

items. The suggestion had been made that Health Scrutiny was unable to allocate enough 

time given its large workload. It was recognised that from time to time it would be necessary 

for each committee to be aware of the work of the other and to be flexible in finding ways to 

work together. To some extent this has been achieved through a small number of joint 

meetings and the attendance of relevant directors at both committees. I know this is an area 

that members’ have strong opinions on and will no doubt be a key factor in considering how 

we take scrutiny forward in the future. 

I must also reflect on the impact of the unprecedented changes to our everyday lives brought 

about by the Covid-19 pandemic. In these challenging times it is even more evident that 

strong scrutiny can provide support and strength in helping the Council make the right 

choices for the people of Gloucestershire. I am pleased to say that Gloucestershire County 

Council was one of the first councils to hold virtual scrutiny meetings and through Q&A 

Page 79



sessions allow scrutiny members to speak to Cabinet Members and Senior Officers about 

the measures that were being put in place and the strategic direction of the Council.   

I am sure that through the new arrangements put in place as a result of the review, and the 

lessons learned about how scrutiny can function during an emergency period, scrutiny can 

only go from strength to strength moving into a new Council in 2021.  

Cllr Shaun Parsons 

Chair of Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 

 

 

Page 80



Scrutiny Structure 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny  
13 GCC members  

New remit: Budget, performance, risk management, financial management and cross-cutting 

issues 

Children and 

Families Scrutiny  
9 GCC members + 3 

added members 

Health Scrutiny  
9 GCC members + 6 

District members 

Police and Crime 

Panel (PCP) 

Joint Scrutiny 

Committee 
(4 GCC members, top 

ups, 2 independent 

members + District 

representation)  

Adult Social Care 

and Communities 

Scrutiny  
9 GCC members 

New remit: 

Adult Social Care, 

Fire and Rescue,  

Public Health, Health 

and Wellbeing Board, 

Libraries, Public 

Protection (including 

Trading Standards) 

Economic Growth 

Scrutiny  

6 GCC members + 6 

District members 

Environment 

Scrutiny  
9 GCC members  

Note Public 

Protection 

(including GFRS) 

now with ASCC 

P
age 81



Activities and outcomes 

1.  Biodiversity 

2. Examining the Culture of Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service  

2.  General Surgery 

3. Youth Strategy  

4. Single Use Plastics  

5. Workforce Issues and Challenges across ICS 

6. Taxi Licensing  

7. Public Participation 

8. Aspen Centre Visit 

9. Budget Scrutiny 

10. Gloucestershire Police and Crime Panel 

11. Children and Families 

12. Impact of Covid-19 

13. Local Meetings – GEGSC 

14. Local Transport Plan 

15. Fit for the Future 

16.  Member Development 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 82



 

BIODIVERSITY TASK GROUP 
 
 
Established: June 2018, Reported to Cabinet: April 2019 
 
 

Background:  

In June 2018 a motion was unanimously carried at Gloucestershire County Council’s 
(GCC) Full Council meeting to set up a working group to look at protecting and 
encouraging biodiversity in Gloucestershire.  
 
It was noted that in 1935 almost 40% of the Cotswolds landscape was covered with 
wildflower-rich grassland. Since then, unimproved grassland sites have fallen to just 
1.5% of the area of the Cotswolds. 
 
It was further noted that: 
 

 That thousands of species are at risk of extinction due to habitat loss. 

 That the loss of biodiversity is having serious consequences for the resilience 
of ecosystem functions on which our communities and countryside depend. 

 With the loss of lowland meadows and pastures across the UK, grassy road 
verges in particular offer vital refuges for plants and wildflowers. 

 
Membership: 
 
Councillors Rachel Smith (Chair), Lesley Williams, Paul Hodgkinson, Suzanne 
Williams, Shaun Parsons and Terry Hale. 
 
Aims and Objectives 

 Work with districts, towns and parishes to develop highways management 
systems that protect and support biodiversity in Gloucestershire. 

 Review the GCC highways and biodiversity guidance for Gloucestershire, 
taking into consideration Plantlife's Road Verges and Wildlife Management 
Guidelines: http://plantlife.love-
wildflowers.org.uk/uploads/documents/Road_Verge_Campaign_full_guideline
s_2015.pdf 

 Embed action points into highway management contracts which give 
contractors clear instructions and communicate expectations. For example, 
the pro-active management of registered conservation verges and careful 
monitoring of pesticides. 

 Look at best practice examples, picking out some key options for trial in 
Gloucestershire to consider their effectiveness, both from an environmental 
and cost point of view. 

 
Meetings: 

Page 83

http://plantlife.love-wildflowers.org.uk/uploads/documents/Road_Verge_Campaign_full_guidelines_2015.pdf
http://plantlife.love-wildflowers.org.uk/uploads/documents/Road_Verge_Campaign_full_guidelines_2015.pdf
http://plantlife.love-wildflowers.org.uk/uploads/documents/Road_Verge_Campaign_full_guidelines_2015.pdf


15 October 2018 
26 November 2018 
11 January 2019 (Seminar) 
18 February 2019 
 
At the first meeting of the group, it was decided that the final objective was to set up 

a public workshop to explore biodiversity in Gloucestershire with other local 

authorities and ecological groups. 

Members met with officers from GCC to understand what the Council already 

practised to promote biodiversity and to scope what form the workshop would take. 

Members agreed that the main focus of the task group’s work should be the 

management of road verges (grass cutting). 

Recommendations 

Points to note 
 

1. To highlight the importance of not littering. If verges are full of litter, it is very 
difficult for biodiversity to thrive. It causes a hazard to plant flourishment, 
animal safety and the environment as a whole through pollutants. 
 

2. As the task group terms of reference committed to look at the use of 
pesticides, to highlight GCC’s current position: 
 
‘Gloucestershire County Council use glyphosate to treat noxious weeds and 
also it may be used when we are undertaking surfacing treatment work to 
prevent weed germination under a new surface. The spraying programme 
uses glyphosate, but this is not part of our cyclical programme, and only 
occurs if County Councillors specifically request it to be funded from their 
Highways local allocation.’ 
 

Recommendations to Gloucestershire Highways 
 

1. To allocate a sufficient and appropriate budget from within the total costings of 
every major highways project to protect and enhance green infrastructure, 
bearing in mind our commitment to the Green Infrastructure Pledge. 

 
Timescale: Immediately 

 
2. To undertake to create a business case for allowing a greater collection of 

grass cuttings whilst managing verges through the purchase of suitable 
machinery. 
 
Timescale: To feedback by 1st July 
 

3. To commit to using low fertility treatments as an alternative to top soil, where 
this involves no extra cost. Members learnt in the workshop that using 
alternatives such as chalk, limestone or even sand have the potential to save 
time and money, both on creation and during future management. Not only do 

Page 84



low-fertility treatments reduce grass growth but they also allow wildflowers to 
thrive. 
 
Timescale: Immediately 
 

4. To commit to reviewing the ‘Plantlife’ technical guidance when available, to 
incorporate any practical points into the verge management strategy where 
possible and feed this back to members. 
 
Timescale: Technical guidance due spring 2019 

 
5. To consider the best way to mark and identify protected verges ‘on the ground’ 

as well as updating the electronic register. There were examples given during 
the workshop where sub-contractors managing the verges have accidently cut 
on a protected verge. Examples such as marking the beginning and end of a 
protected verge with a white post were highlighted. 

 
Timescale: To feedback by 1st July 
 

6. To feedback to Ringway, as the new term maintenance contractors, the 
Council’s view of taking a flexible approach when it comes to the timing and 
frequency of verge cuts. The group agreed that the later the cut into the 
growing season (generally April to early July), the more likely it is to cause a 
disadvantage to flora, flowering and seeding. It was noted however that road 
safety must be the governing factor when considering timing/frequency of cuts 
throughout the year. 

 
Timescale: Immediately 

 
7. To write to Highways England to feedback the recommendations and findings 

of this report. 
 

Timescale: Immediately 
 

8. To encourage better engagement with parish/town councils regarding the 
delegation of verge management and awareness of biodiversity. The group 
acknowledge that this engagement could also come from members within their 
own parish/town Councils. Therefore, there would be a request to officers to 
produce a short information sheet covering the following, for all members to 
distribute as they wish within their areas: 

 

 How GCC can support parish/town councils to take responsibility for their 
own verge management. 

 Awareness of biodiversity e.g. examples of recommendations from this 
report and exemplar cases such as Cold Aston Parish Council. 

 Litter picking and herbicides use policies. 
 

Response: 

Page 85



Extracts from the Cabinet Panel report received by Environment Scrutiny Committee 

on 26 November 2019: 

(Link to the minutes of the meeting: 

https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/g9337/Printed%20minutes%20Tu

esday%2026-Nov-

2019%2010.00%20Environment%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=1) 

Recommendation 1 

Gloucestershire County Council Highways have a robust approach to protecting and 

enhancing green infrastructure and biodiversity as part of our major projects. During 

initial project stages an environmental checklist is completed to identify potential 

environmental constraints including features, habitats and species – this allows 

relevant specialists to become involved in developing the project in a sensitive 

manner from an early stage. The green infrastructure and biodiversity assets within 

and around a project are identified by environmental specialists (including ecologists, 

landscape architects and arboriculturalists) through a combination of desk-top 

research, consultation with relevant council officers and site surveys. 

Our specialists work with design teams to challenge proposals and identify 

opportunities to avoid, reduce, mitigate or offset the green infrastructure and 

biodiversity impacts of a project and, if possible, deliver enhancements. Subject to 

the level of potential impact and consenting regime for a project, environmental 

assessment is undertaken following industry best practice to report on the existing 

situation, the expected change resulting from the project, proposed mitigation 

measures and the overall significance of impact. 

Landscape and environmental design proposals are produced accompanied by 

specifications in order to achieve the intended environmental outcome. Where 

actions are required to protect environmental features during construction, 

Environmental Management Plans are produced detailing processes and exclusion 

areas that will be followed by the contractor and identifying where watching briefs 

may be required by specialists during specific activities or seasons. 

Recommendation 2 

Our contractor Ringway has obtained some initial costs and looked at the feasibility 

of undertaking this work on the county Highway network. 

Unfortunately it is not practical to use the available cut and clear equipment on all 

Highway verges so only a limited number of flat clear sites would be suitable. This 

may change when other appropriate equipment is designed and comes on to the 

market. 

Page 86

https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/g9337/Printed%20minutes%20Tuesday%2026-Nov-2019%2010.00%20Environment%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=1
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/g9337/Printed%20minutes%20Tuesday%2026-Nov-2019%2010.00%20Environment%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=1
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/g9337/Printed%20minutes%20Tuesday%2026-Nov-2019%2010.00%20Environment%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=1


An initial estimate shows an approximate 8 fold increase in the costs of cutting and 

collecting as opposed to a standard flail cut. Again this uplift cost may reduce with 

the availability of suitable equipment. 

It may be a number of years before the action of grass cutting removal has the 

desired effect of reducing nitrogen levels in the verge. This would improve wild flower 

diversity and provide some reduction in verge cut and clear costs. 

Recommendation 3 

Embed no or low fertility treatments in scheme design and following Plantlife’s new 

technical guidance (see Recommendation 4 below) We will take care to avoid using 

too much top soil for tree planting/landscaping which can harm surrounding low 

nutrient grassland/ wildflower vegetation. The default will normally be to not use top 

soil. Bare surfaces can be roughened up to allow colonisation by or seeding with 

appropriate wild flowers. This approach should also save costs. 

County and District Ecologists to make appropriate comments in all planning 

application consultations involving new roads including those of Highways England, 

e.g. A 417 missing link, improvements to J10 (11) of the M5, A40, large new 

strategic developments etc. 

Recommendation 4 

Plantlife’s technical guidance was due spring 2019 but was only released on 27th 

September and can be found at https://www.plantlife.org.uk/uk/our-

work/publications/road-verge-management-guide. Officers are reviewing its content 

which will serve as useful detailed background information and advice. The County 

Council’s Biodiversity Guidance will be further updated accordingly to generally 

follow the Plantlife publication. 

See also Recommendation 3 above 

Recommendation 5 

A review has determined that the most practical and cost efficient solution is to use 

road studs in the carriageway to mark the beginning and ends of all registered 

Conservation Road Verges (as shown in the 2019 update which consists of just over 

100 verges across the county). 

Work to install studs has been issued to the contractor and should be complete by 

spring 2020. 

If parishes want additional marking, e.g. small signs on posts, then they can do this 

at their own cost and subject to County Highways agreement. 

Page 87

https://www.plantlife.org.uk/uk/our-work/publications/road-verge-management-guide
https://www.plantlife.org.uk/uk/our-work/publications/road-verge-management-guide


GPS use by tractor drivers/mowing operatives is to be introduced in the medium 

term (2021 to 2023) to map areas to be cut. This can be extended to locating 

Conservation Road Verges etc. so they are left or cut at the right time of year. 

Recommendation 6 

Following Plantlife’s new technical guidance (2019) determine what might be 

possible in 2020/2021. 

We will engage with Ringway (Dec to March 2019) to trial some flexibility being built 

into the periods and frequencies for cutting visibility splays and also the main cut with 

the aim of improving biodiversity and lowering costs in the longer term. 

Recommendation 7 

Ongoing consultations with Highways England on major projects, including A417 

missing link scheme, where new/changed cuttings and embankments provide 

opportunities for wildflower enhancement. 

Recommendations and feedback have not yet been sent formally to Highways 

England until reviewed by Scrutiny (Environment & Communities) November 2019. 

See also Recommendation 3 above 

Recommendation 8 

A suitable information sheet for parish/town councils will take some time to collate 

but it should be focused on biodiversity conservation but also include reference to 

Plantlife & GCC guidance, safety requirements, verge cultivation licences, litter 

picking, weed control and new emerging approaches to managing Conservation 

Road Verge’s, top soil use, plus cut and clear methods etc. 

Update GCC guidance and supporting text of website page 

https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/highways/plans-policies-procedures-

manuals/biodiversity-and-highways/ to indicate GCC has a programme of trying to 

improve biodiversity on verges which is being rolled out in phases 

By end of 2019 – update GCC guidance and on website page add a few references 

to GCC’s evolving work on improving biodiversity on verges. Compile draft 

information sheet for parishes by February 2020 and agree final version for April 

2020. 

Further actions 

The Environment Scrutiny Committee considered a draft of the information sheet at 

their meeting in March 2020.  

 

Page 88

https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/highways/plans-policies-procedures-manuals/biodiversity-and-highways/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/highways/plans-policies-procedures-manuals/biodiversity-and-highways/


 
Examining the Culture of Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue 
Service  
 
 
Established: September 2018, Reported to Cabinet: April 2019 
 
 

Background:  

In June 2018, the Chief Fire Officer resigned acknowledging ‘poor judgment’ by not 
recognising the significance of his personal interest in acquiring a fire service 
vehicle, where the disposal process had been overseen by himself. This was the 
result of a whistleblowing allegation that has led to the commencement of an 
extensive investigation carried out by Internal Audit at the County Council including a 
review of relevant polices, practices, systems and processes. Progress updates 
against any actions identified through these reviews will be provided to Audit and 
Governance Committee.  
 
Following the resignation of the Chief Fire Officer, a number of additional 
whistleblowing allegations were received which detailed other governance issues 
and concerns around the culture within the Fire and Rescue Service.  
 
Scrutiny members agreed to set up a task group to support the work being carried 
out with a specific focus on the culture of Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service. 
 
 
Membership: 
 
Councillors Iain Dobie, Kate Haigh, Jeremy Hilton (Chair), Stephen Hirst, Shaun 
Parsons, John Payne, Will Windsor Clive. 
 
 
Aims and Objectives 

 To explore the current culture within the Fire and Rescue service (to 
understand its behaviours, attitudes, values and beliefs) and recommend 
changes to improve it.  

 To ensure that GFRS is fair and transparent in its relationships with others 
and its working practices (including procurement) and establish how the 
service can be more robustly scrutinised to ensure any issues relating to 
governance or culture do not reoccur.  

 To propose ways in which GFRS can move forward as a county council fire 
and rescue service, working in collaboration with other council and blue light 
services  

Page 89



 To consider any issues relevant to the work of the task group that arise from 
the report presented to Audit and Governance Committee into the sale of a 
fire service vehicle.  

 
 
Meetings: 

 
9 October 2018 
15 November 2018 
13 December 2018 
15 January 2019 
8 March 2019 
 
The task group met with the following 
 

 Acting Chief Fire Officer  

 Cabinet Member for Public Protection, Parking and Libraries  

 Commissioning Director  

 Head of Human Resources  

 Consultant on GFRS Culture Review  

 Leader of Council  

 Chief Executive  

 Trade Unions (invitations sent, meeting did not happen)  

 Internal Audit  
 

Recommendations  

 
A.  Explore whether the Fire and Rescue Service can adopt a more integrated 

model of back office support service, such as HR, IT, Property, 
Communications and Finance. In particular, whether a stronger business 
partner model might provide the service with greater access to skills and 
expertise to help the service manage its change programme. The HR 
leadership at the County Council should possess the necessary expertise to 
enable it to play a leading role in culture change within GFRS.  

 
B. Redefine the role of the Chief Fire Officer within the County Council to reflect 

the positive integration of services but not overload the role during such a vital 
time of change.  

 
C. Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service should adopt the County Council 

values. This will reflect that the service is part of the County Council with a 
shared culture.  

D.  Ask the current Scrutiny Review to consider the most appropriate way of 
strengthening scrutiny of the Fire and Rescue Service.  

Page 90



E.  The task group has suggested that Cllr Dave Norman as Cabinet Member 
responsible for Public Protection set up a Cabinet Panel to ensure oversight 
of the current change programme within the Fire and Rescue Service. (it is 
noted that this could include cross party membership.)  

 
Response: 

Extracts from the Cabinet Panel report received by Adult Social Care and 

Communities Scrutiny Committee on 28 January 2020: 

With Cllr Norman, (Cabinet Member for Public Protection), as Chairman, a Cabinet 

Panel was established in June 2019. The Panel agreed to meet at regular intervals 

over a defined time period.  

The purpose of the Panel was to provide support to the Cabinet Member, (following 

on from the work undertaken by the GFRS Scrutiny Task and Finish Group), and 

working within the operating principles set out by the Panel Operating Principles 

included in Part 4 of the Council’s Constitution.  

The Panel supported the following ambitions: -   

 

a) To explore the culture of the Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service, (to gain an 

understanding of behaviours, attitudes, values and beliefs), and to make 

recommendations for improvement; 

 

b) To clarify the role of the Chief Fire Officer and senior officer roles:  

c) To ensure the working practices (including procurement) and the relationships within 

GFRS and between GFRS and other organisations were fair and transparent;  

 

d) To consider ways in which GFRS could be more robustly scrutinised, 

 

e) To propose ways in which GFRS could move forward as a County Council Fire and 

Rescue Service, (working in collaboration with other council and blue light services);  

 

f) To consider issues emerging from the recommendations made by the GFRS Task 

Group and any outcomes arising from the reports presented by the GCC Audit and 

Governance Committee. 

 

The clear focus within GFRS over the coming 12-24 months is for the GFRS 

Improvement Programme Board to work through the action plan, ensuring that the 

audit and HMICFRS findings are addressed in a professional and sustainable way, 

which will develop skill and competence alongside process and procedure.   

Supervisory and middle management development are key to ensuring that the 

strategic vision and values are continually role modelled and communicated and all 

Page 91



staff are supported to understand the direction of travel and work within a well-

established values framework to clear organisational objectives. This is a cultural 

change which will take patience and time to embed.   

During 2020, the next integrated risk management plan will be developed.  The data 

analysis to support this will be closely aligned to the latest National Fire Chiefs 

Council learning and from other Fire and Rescue Services who have been inspected 

by HMICFRS and are deemed to have performed well in relation to the development 

to their IRMP.  This will set the future objectives of GFRS and will be linked to and 

supportive of the GCC strategic plans and vision 2050 documents as well as 

strategies relating to public health, social care and policing.   

Combined with the improvement programme board outcomes, a clear strategy and 

objectives with a fresh and forward looking vision will be in place by the summer of 

2021. 

The improvement and integration journey for GFRS has begun. A period of 

consolidation will be required, led by the Chief Fire Officer and Strategic Leadership 

Team of GFRS, but equally supported by senior officers and members from wider 

GCC.  

The service is ready to meet the challenges arising from the audit reports and from 

HMICFRS. This will need stability and governance provided by GCC as the Fire 

Authority.  

The professional relationship established by the Lead Cabinet Member and GFRS is 

open to scrutiny. A commitment to full collaborative working within GCC will deliver 

positive outcomes for Gloucestershire residents and staff at GFRS.  

I wish to place on record my thanks to the Panel and for the support provided by staff 

from the GCC DSU Team and from GFRS, whose involvement through the life of the 

Panel has been both constructive and invaluable.  

Cllr Dave Norman 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 92



 
General Surgery 
 
 
Established November 2018 :, Reported: July 2019 
 
 
 

Background:  

The Health and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee was first made aware of 

proposals around a pilot on General Surgery was following a leaked internal staff 

memo by a Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust consultants writing to 

all members of the GHNHSFT Board expressing views on the preferred model of 

care. 

General Surgery is an overarching term for upper gastrointestinal surgery and 

colorectal surgery. This was a proposal to pilot the reconfiguration of general surgery 

where Emergency general surgery and complex planned general surgery would be 

centralised at Gloucestershire Royal Hospital and short stay and day case general 

surgery would be centralised at Cheltenham General Hospital  

A report provided a timeline of events and detailed the initial work that was carried 

out prior to the suspension of the task group’s work.  

 
 
Membership: 
 
Councillors: Carole Allaway Martin, Martin Horwood (Cheltenham), Stephen 
Andrews (Cotswold), Brian Oosthuysen, Colette Finnegan (Gloucester). 
 
 
Aims and Objectives 

 To act as a critical friend in the development and implementation of a pilot for 

the change to the model of emergency general surgery 

 To understand any potential impact the pilot might have on other Health Care 

Services and partners (including social care/ transport) 

 To fully understand the available options and input into the long term 
approach for emergency general surgery in Gloucestershire. 

 
Meetings: 

 

Page 93



 November 2018- At a committee meeting in November, Members were 

provided with a detailed presentation on the proposal highlighting the benefits 

that were expected to be achieved, and the metrics that would be used in the 

evaluation of the pilot. Members understood that the following timescale was 

being followed: 

o Implementation planning November 2018 – March 2019  

o System mobilisation – April to September 2019 

o Go-live – September 2019 

o Progress report to Health Scrutiny after 3 months and then frequently 

as agreed 
 

 20 February 2019 - The Committee held an additional meeting to discuss the 

proposals and gain a better understanding of the detail. The Chair of Health 

and Care Scrutiny Committee had written to the Secretary of State on this 

matter and it was clarified that the stage at which the committee could ask  

the Secretary of State to intervene had not been reached. The Committee 

agreed to request the setting up of a task group that would allow members to 

receive answers to their questions and raise their concerns. 

 

 22 March 2019 - The County Council’s Overview and Scrutiny Management 

Committee agreed the one page strategy so the task group could begin its 

work. 

 

 18th April 2019 -, Due to the NHS facing the potential of a judicial review in 

relation to their general surgery pilot in the county, the Chair of the county’s 

Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee suspended the work the task group.  

 

 2 May 2019 - The Trust stated that it had carefully considered a recent 
challenge to its proposal to pilot changes to the configuration of general 
surgical services in the County and had concluded that it would set aside the 
intention to implement the proposed pilot scheme. The Trust stated it would 
continue to look at options for the future working with local people in 
preparation for the planning public engagement and consultation later in the 
year. 
 

 

Recommendations  

As the pilot is no longer going to be implemented, the task group has now 

been brought to a close. It will be up to Health Scrutiny to consider how they 

wish to scrutinise any future proposals in this area in due course. 

Page 94



 The Health and Care Scrutiny Committee has now had a remit change; 

responsibility for the scrutiny of adult social care will now sit under a new 

Adult Social Care and Communities Scrutiny Committee. This will allow 

greater focus on the pilots and temporary service changes in progress. It will 

also mean that consideration of workforce issues as well as a number of other 

topics will need to be carried out jointly with the newly formed committee to 

ensure that the national integration agenda is not lost at a local level.  

The Health and Care Scrutiny Committee has been clear in the past about 

their disappointment regarding the way in which news of the pilot was brought 

to their attention. 

The Committee is developing a memorandum of understanding with the 

Trusts which will help guide the way in which it scrutinises service change and 

clarifies the definitions around, ‘temporary’, ‘pilot’ and ‘substantial variation. 

The focus for members will be putting place effective scrutiny of the upcoming 

engagement and consultation which will include General Surgery proposals 

later this year.  

 
 
Response: 

Update provided on 17 March 2020 at Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

regarding the next steps for General Surgery. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 95



 
YOUTH STRATEGY TASK GROUP 
 
 
 
Established: March 2019, Reported to Cabinet: November 2019 

Background:  

In March 2019, Cllrs Lesley Williams and Steve Robinson submitted a request to the 

Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee for a task group to look at a Youth 

Strategy for 8 - 24 year-olds in Gloucestershire. 

Membership: 
 
Councillors Lesley Williams (Chair), Steve Robinson, Colin Hay, Suzanne Williams, 
Eva Ward, Terry Hale, Stephen Davies and Carole Allaway-Martin. 
 
Aims and Objectives 

 To review and scrutinise current provisions for 8 – 24 year olds in 
Gloucestershire. 

 To consider how the Council could encourage young people’s personal and 
social development outside of school hours, and their preparation for adult 
life, through promoting youth provision in every community, delivered by a mix 
of volunteers and trained staff. 

 To make sure that whatever their background or circumstances, every young 
person has the support they need to be healthy, stay safe, enjoy and achieve, 
make a positive contribution and achieve economic well-being. 

 With partners, to use the continuum of need, in the new Right Placement First 
Time: Sufficiency Strategy, to develop recommendations to help the council 
better co-ordinate intervention services and provide a county-wide strategy. 

 
Meetings: 

17 April 2019 
14 May 2019 
18 June 2019  
5 August 2019 
11 September 2019 
16 September 2019 (Seminar) 
11 October 2019 
 
At the first meeting of the task group in April 2019, the group agreed on two main 

outcomes for the task group: to host a youth strategy seminar and to carry out a 

consultation process. The further four meetings of the task group allowed members 

to plan for these, as well as develop their understanding of the current youth 

provision in Gloucestershire. 

Page 96



Recommendations 

1. That the direction of travel of council youth support services and council-
supported youth provision, becomes more preventative. That means reaching 
out to groups of young people who may be on the cusp but have not yet been 
referred by police, education, health or social care for specialist youth support. 
 

2. That the council works with its partners to organize a programme of regular 
events for people and organisations working in the youth sector – from 
whatever angle – for the purpose of networking, collaboration and continuous 
professional development. That some of these are countywide, others specific 
to a district. 
 

3. That the council works with its partners to agree a new common approach to 
the youth work training pathway, from youth leadership to volunteer training to 
degree-level professional qualification. That, to support this, the council builds 
in to any specification for youth support services a requirement to offer and 
support full youth work Apprenticeships at various levels. 
 

4. That an investment is made into council youth support services to enhance 
outreach and street-based youth work delivery across the county, and to bring 
professional youth work expertise into supporting community initiatives. And 
that the minimum number of full-time JNC-qualified youth workers in the YST 
is one per district, each supported by at least five part-time workers (i.e. 
approximately double current levels). 
 

5. That an investment is made into council-supported youth provision through an 
adequately resourced grant programme devolved to division or district level, 
and supported by officers, to support and sustain the valuable preventative 
youth work by local voluntary and community sector organisations. 

 
Response: 

Extract from the Children and Families Scrutiny Committee considering the report in 

November 2019: 

The Director of Children’s Services (DCS) informed the meeting that the instruction 

from the Cabinet Member Children’s Safeguarding and Early Years was to feed this 

work into the review/refresh of the Youth Service. The committee was informed that 

the Assistant Director for Integrated Children and Families Commissioning was 

leading the procurement process for the Youth Service and the Youth Offending 

Service – this would take place in 2020. It was noted that the contract with Prospects 

(now part of the Shaw Trust) had been extended to end of March 2021. 

Members indicated that they wished to have a clearer understanding of the tender 

document and the associated timescale of the procurement process. It was agreed 

that this report be included in the committee’s workplan to be considered again in six 

months. 

Page 97



Update: Due to Covid-19 and the impact on services and the market, Children 
services have decided to seek approval to extend the current contract for a further 
year and development of the new youth strategy was postponed as a result. 
 

Extract from initial Cabinet response in November 2019: 

Cllr Richard Boyles, Cabinet Member for Children’s Safeguarding and Early Years, 

thanked the task group for its work. He also thanked officers for the extensive work 

they had provided in supporting the task group.  

Cllr Boyles stated that the proposals from the review would be added to the council’s 

existing work in developing a wider Youth Strategy for 2020; this included 

considering measures to help shape the future of the young people of 

Gloucestershire. Cllr Boyles welcomed the task group observations and offered to 

discuss the proposals in more detail after the meeting.  

Leader of the Council, Cllr Mark Hawthorne, praised the task group for its work. 

Referring to the innovative work being undertaken throughout the county, Cllr 

Hawthorne suggested that the report be used to draw on the positive aspects of the 

council’s work and referenced to when considering areas requiring improvement.  

The work of the task group had been presented to the Children and Families 

Scrutiny Committee and considered by the Children and Families Commissioning 

Team. The report was noted. 

Further actions 

 To be considered alongside the development of the new youth strategy 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 98



 
SINGLE USE PLASTICS TASK GROUP 
 
 
Established: March 2019, Reported to Cabinet: December 2020 (tentative) 
 
 

Scrutiny activity:  

Background:  

In March 2018, a motion was unanimously carried at Gloucestershire County 
Council’s (GCC) full Council as follows: 
 
This Council therefore resolves to: 

 Eliminate all SUP within County Council managed buildings and facilities by 
2020, and seek to encourage the elimination of SUP within its supply chain by 
2025. 

 Asks the Gloucestershire Joint Waste Partnership to consider how they could 
promote the reduction of SUP across the county and to highlight areas of 
further lobbying to central government by both collection and waste disposal 
authorities. 

 
In February 2019, following a member question at full Council from Cllr Eva Ward, 
the Cabinet Member for Environment and Planning expressed support for a task 
group to be establishment to examine all options to become a ‘single-use plastic-
free’ Council and reduce SUP use in the County. 
 
Following this, in July 2019, Environment Scrutiny Committee approved a one page 
strategy request from Cllrs Eva Ward and Andrew Miller to establish a task group.  
 
Membership: 
 
Councillors Eva Ward (Chair), Andrew Miller, Lesley Williams, Suzanne Williams, 
Loraine Patrick and Carole Allaway-Martin. 
 
To note: Cllr Carole Allaway-Martin had to leave the task group membership in 
January due to her appointment to the Council’s Cabinet. The Constitution for GCC 
states that executive members cannot be members of scrutiny task groups. 
 
Aims and Objectives 

 To understand the current progress towards the elimination of SUPs within 
County Council managed buildings and facilities, including any promotional 
campaigns. 

 To understand the technical impact of different plastics on the environment. 

 To explore SUP initiatives at other county councils. 

 To work with and learn from local district councils on their SUP initiatives. 

Page 99



 To understand how to effectively engage and enable Council partners, 
schools and the public to reduce their use of SUPs, taking account of projects 
run by ‘Surfers Against Sewage’: https://www.sas.org.uk/about-us/ 

 
Meetings: 

12 September 2019 
10 October 2019 
28 November 2019  
16 January 2020 
14 February 2020 
10 September 2020 
23 October 2020 
 
To note: The group’s work was suspended from March – September 2020 due to the 

impacts of the Covid-19 pandemic. 

Recommendations 

October 2020 – the group are in the process of finalising their report with an aim to 

report to Scrutiny in November 2020 and Cabinet in December 2020. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 100



WORKFORCE ISSUES AND CHALLENGES ACROSS THE 
INTEGRATED CARE SYSTEM 
 
 
Established: July 2019 
 
 

Background 

 

As part of the Scrutiny Review it was agreed that joint meetings would be held 

between Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee and Adult Social Care and 

Communities Scrutiny members.  

A joint committee meeting was held made up of members from both committees to 

consider the workforce issues and challenges across the Integrated Care System. 

The purpose of the meeting was to receive information to help inform both 

committees’ work planning and to ensure members had the background on these 

issues to help understand future service changes. 

 

Membership 

Cllr Phil Awford 
Cllr Collette Finnegan 
Cllr Terry Hale 
Cllr Jeremy Hilton 
Cllr Stephen Hirst (Chair) 
Cllr Paul Hodgkinson 
Cllr Martin Horwood 
Cllr Steve Lydon 
Cllr Carole Allaway Martin 
Cllr Helen Molyneux 
Cllr Dilys Neill 
Cllr Nigel Robbins OBE 
Cllr Steve Robinson 
Cllr Jill Smith 
Cllr Pam Tracey MBE 
Cllr Robert Vines 

 

Meeting  

30 July 2019 

 

Page 101



 
 

TAXI LICENSING TASK GROUP 
 
 
 
Established: September 2019, Reported to Cabinet: TBC 

Background:  

In September 2019, Cllr Haigh requested to set up a task group with the ambition to 

explore the economic benefits and make recommendations in respect of adopting a 

common set of standards, sanctions, fees and guidance for taxi and private hire 

vehicle licensing for all local authorities in Gloucestershire. 

This request was approved by the Economic Growth Scrutiny Committee and the 
following areas were outlined for consideration: 

 The National Revocations and Refusals Register 

 The fit and proper persons test 

 Environmental concerns, including air quality 

 Adaptations for people with disabilities 

 The ongoing government review and LGA best practise 

 App based taxi services 

 The role of taxis and PHVs in rural communities 

 School transport 

 Training and how training is shared 

 Safeguarding and vulnerable users 

 The economic benefits to be gained by a common partnership approach 
between District Licensing Authorities (DLAs) 
 

Membership: 
 
The membership comprised of both County Councillors and District Councillors most 
of whom were Chairs of their particular Licensing Committee.  
 
Members from Gloucestershire County Council (GGC) were Councillors Kate Haigh 
(Chair), Bernard Fisher, Stephen Hirst and Brian Robinson.  
 
District Licensing Committee Chairs were Councillors Clive Walford (Gloucester), 
David Willingham (Cheltenham), Graham Bocking (Tewkesbury), Mattie Ross 
(Stroud), Juliet Layton (Cotswolds) and Maria Edwards (Forest of Dean). 
 
Meetings: 

5 September 2019 
7 October 2019 
25 November 2019  
20 February 2020 
 

Page 102



To note: The group’s work was suspended from March – September 2020 due to the 

impacts of the Covid-19 pandemic. 

 

Groups and individuals were invited to give evidence and information, as decided by 

the group within a series of meetings. Meetings focused on different groups and 

areas which govern and are impacted by licensing; the Integrated Transport Unit, the 

Gloucestershire Licensing Officers Group, hackney and private hire drivers and 

members of the public. The group also carried out two consultation processes; one 

aimed at taxi drivers and one at the public. 

Recommendations 

TBC – these are currently awaiting sign off by members and supporting officers 

Recommendations to District Licensing Committees and the Gloucestershire 

Licensing Officers Group 

1.1. To sign up to and implement the National Register of Refusals and 

Revocations (NR3) for the respective authorities if they have not already 

done so. 

 

1.2. To draw up a comparison of policies and licensing standards across all 

authorities and explore how vehicle standards and enforcement can be 

aligned and organised jointly. This may be done through a transition period of 

implementing new standards gradually.  

 

1.3. To agree and implement a joint training offer on safeguarding and disability 

awareness for licensing committee members and drivers.  

 

1.4. To work towards a common approach to the use of CCTV in taxis and private 

higher vehicles across the County by 2024. The group note the recent 

Statutory Guidance that has been published on this which identifies the 

benefits of using this technology and of a common approach to adopting 

changes to the licensing regime.  

(Please refer to  paragraphs 7.7 – 7.13 at the following link for further 

information: 

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/

attachment_data/file/904369/statutory-taxi-and-private-hire-vehicle-standards-

english-28-07-2020.pdf).  

Recommendations to Transport Planning and Integrated Transport Unit 

1.5. To work together with District licensing committees and the GLOG to ensure 

that planned changes to infrastructure such as electric charging points and 

Page 103

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/904369/statutory-taxi-and-private-hire-vehicle-standards-english-28-07-2020.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/904369/statutory-taxi-and-private-hire-vehicle-standards-english-28-07-2020.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/904369/statutory-taxi-and-private-hire-vehicle-standards-english-28-07-2020.pdf


projects such as the community transport pilot take taxi and private hire 

vehicles into account, particularly for those operating in rural areas.  

 

1.6. To sign Gloucestershire County Council up to and implement the National 

Register of Refusals and Revocations (NR3) if they have not already done 

so. 

1.7. Recommendations to District Licensing Officers and the GCC ITU To 

collaborate on a County wide awareness raising media campaign to improve 

public awareness of the differences between hackney and private hire 

vehicles.  

 

1.8. To run annual County wide surveys for drivers and the general public via the 

District licensing authorities to monitor progress and effectiveness of 

recommendations. The responses from this are to be discussed between 

District Licensing Committees, GLOG and ITU at a joint annual meeting. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 104



 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION SCRUTINY TASK GROUP 
 
Established: November 2019, Reported to Cabinet: December 2020 (Tentative) 

 

Background: 

At the 13 February 2019 Gloucestershire County Council (GCC) Budget Council, an 

amendment was proposed by Cllr Ward and Cllr R Smith to create a Public Participation 

Officer role dedicated to improving the public’s experience of engaging with Council 

meetings and consultations. 

 

This budget amendment was later withdrawn, subject to a commitment for a task group to be 

set up instead to examine how people engage with the council and how engagement could 

be improved. 

 

Membership 

Councillors Eva Ward, Stephen Hirst, Shaun Parsons, Lesley Williams, Rachel Smith and 

Kate Haigh. Councillor Eva Ward was appointed as chair. 

 

Aims and Objectives 

The ambitions for the review were as follows; 

 To understand what GCC does at present in terms of improving public 

participation; 

 To explore how effective these processes are at helping the public to 

meaningfully engage and promote active citizenship; 

 To learn from relevant outside sources and other Local Authorities s to 

identify examples of best practice; and 

 To make recommendations, including any resource implications that would 

enhance public engagement with the Council and its processes (copy of the 

full one page strategy at Annex 1).  

Meetings: 

The group met three times from November 2019 to February 2020 to develop their 

understanding of how GCC performed in this year currently, and explore examples of how 

this could be improved. Following the Covid-19 pandemic the group paused its work, 

reconvening in September 2020. The group reflected on the changes in working practice 

over that time and lessons learned with regards to public participation. 

Recommendations 

Page 105



 

A. To ensure that the facility of public questions at meetings of County Council, Cabinet 

and other committee meetings are clearly outlined on the website and that there is 

appropriate promotion through the Council’s Communications Team. 

 

B. Notifications of petitions received to be sent to members regularly via 

communications channels such as the Members Matters weekly update (updated 

and maintained on the Members’ website). 

 

C. That a review be carried out of the Consultation processes including how feedback 

from councillors and members of the public can help to ensure they are carried out 

more effectively. 

 

D. That the Communications Team continues to work on improving how information is 

presented. 

 

E. Review the County’s Community Charter, which sets out the way engagement is 

carried out between the county council and communities (such as through town and 

parish councils). This review will include gathering intel and insight of approaches to 

consultation and engagement and will allow all residents to benefit from the offer. 

 

In addition the task group wishes to recommend to Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee that: 

F. The public representation pilot being carried out by Health Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee be made a standing item and expanded to all other scrutiny committees. 

 

Response: 

Due to report to Cabinet in December 2020. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 106



 
ASPEN CENTRE VISIT 
 
 
Established: December 2019, Reported: January 2020 
 
 

Background:  

At previous Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee meetings, a local member had 

expressed anecdotal concerns regarding the Aspen Medical Centre.  Issues raised 

included: 

 Accessibility of the site including car parking 

 Long waiting times at the centre 

 Difficulty in getting timely appointments 

 Long wait times on the phone lines  

 Challenge of increased registration activity 

 Management of change for staff and patients   

 
 
Membership: 
 
Councillors: Carole Allaway Martin, Terry Hale, Jeremy Hilton 
 
 
Aims and Objectives 

Members wished to understand what the benefits were of the hub approach and the 

timeline of improvement.  

 
 
Meetings: 

 
Members visited the Aspen Centre on 17 December 2019. 

Report circulated on 17 January 2020. 

 

Recommendations  

There are learning points for other areas to take on board based on the challenges the hub 

has faced. In particular: 

Page 107



 It is important to communicate changes appropriately and promote the new initiatives 

in place so that patients understand why a different approach is being taken and 

what the benefits are. 

 

 It is important that there is experience within the team to help manage processes and 

join up all the parts within the hub. 

 

 There needs to be a good feedback and troubleshooting mechanism that is then 

listened to and responded to. 

 

 It was acknowledged that whilst this set up at the Aspen Centre was initially a hub 

model, due to the practice mergers it was now more like one large practice with a 

couple of branch surgeries. 

The Committee will continue to monitor the development of this approach with a potential 

roll out to other areas of the County.  

 
 
Response: 

N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 108



 
BUDGET SCRUTINY – MEETING OF CORPORATE 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
 
Meeting held: 9 January 2020:, Reported to Cabinet: January 2020 
 
 

Background:  

Members met with Cllr Mark Hawthorne, Leader of the Council, and Pete Bungard, 

Chief Executive to discuss the Council Strategy and receive an introduction to the 

budget scrutiny day. Throughout the day the committee would meet with the Cabinet 

Members and Directors under the remit of each Scrutiny Committee and discuss 

their areas of the budget. Members on each of the Committees were welcome to 

attend for their relevant sessions or to stay for the whole day. The minutes of the 

meeting would then be provided to Cabinet to help inform their consideration of the 

budget.  

 
 
Membership: 
 
Councillors: Carole Allaway Martin, John Cordwell, Kevin Cromwell, Iain Dobie, Ben 
Evans, Kate Haigh, Jeremy Hilton, Stephen Hirst, Paul Hodgkinson, Graham 
Morgan, Shaun Parsons, Brian Robinson, Steve Robinson, Rachel Smith, Ray 
Theodoulou, Eva Ward, Lesley Williams,  
 
 
Aims and Objectives 

Members were advised to consider how effectively the proposed budget responded 

to: 

 The changing needs of Gloucestershire residents and communities 

 The priorities and ambitions set out within the Council Strategy – Looking to 

the Future 

 Any legislative or other changes in national policy or guidance 

 
 
Meetings: 

 
9 January 2020. 

In addition to scrutiny members, the following were in attendance: 

Page 109



 

Officers 

Pete Bungard, Chief Executive (Item 1 & 6) 

Rob Ayliffe, Monitoring Officer and Head of Planning, Performance & Change (Item 

1) 

Paul Blacker, Director of Finance  

Mandy Quayle, Director of People (Item 5) 

Colin Chick, Director of Economy, Environment and Infrastructure (Item 2) 

Wayne Bowcock, Chief Fire Officer (Item 3) 

Mark Branton, Deputy Adult Social Care (Item 3) 

Sarah Scott, Director Public Health (Item 3) 

Chris Spencer, Director Children’s Services (Item 4) 

Stephen Bace, Lead Democratic Services Adviser 

Cabinet Members 

Cllr Mark Hawthorne, Leader of Council (Item 1 & 6) 

Cllr Richard Boyles, Deputy Leader of Council and Cabinet Member for Children’s 

Safeguarding and Early Years (Item 4) 

Cllr Vernon Smith, Highways and Flood (Item 2) 

Cllr Kathy Williams, Adult Social Care Delivery (Item 3) 

Cllr Nigel Moor, Environment and Planning (Item 2) 

Cllr Lynden Stowe, Finance and Change (Item 5) 

Cllr Dave Norman, Public Protection, Parking and Libraries (Item 3) 

Cllr Patrick Molyneux, Economy, Education and Skills (Item 2 & 4) 

Cllr Tim Harman, Public Health and Communities (Item 3) 

 

Recommendations/ summary 

At the conclusion of the day, the Committee provided feedback to the Leader of 

Council and Chief Executive. Members outlined a number of recurring themes and 

Page 110



areas of concern that they wished to emphasise in addition to the points raised 

throughout the day. 

 

 Members expressed their concern over the pressure on the Vulnerable 

Children’s budget and, while welcoming the additional investment, expressed 

caution that this budget needed to be closely monitored. 

 

 Members commented on the importance of the level of general reserves, 

noting that it was now at less than 4% of the revenue budget. It was 

recognised that the Section 151 Officer had signed off the draft budget 

including the level of reserves. Some members emphasised that the reserves 

provided an important contingency in relation to any loss of control of the 

Children’s budget. 

 

 Some members asked that consideration be given to presenting the budget 

information in a more easily accessible way. 

 

 The Committee highlighted the way in which Cabinet Members had 

considered the Council’s commitment to responding to climate change 

throughout the day’s discussion. Members welcomed the introduction of a 

Climate Change Strategy. Some members felt that the commitment should be 

more explicit within the budget and reflected in the commissioning intentions. 

 

 Some members felt that the £10,000 per member for highways local was 

disappointing and they would like to see the figure increased. 

 

 The Committee outlined the importance of transport and how it had links to a 

wider range of areas such as schools, employment and adult social care. 

Some members highlighted the importance of support for public transport. 

 

 One member commented that in some areas of the budget, savings were 

attributed to a review of a particular service or staffing structure, but it was 

unclear how those reviews would save the Council money. It was felt that 

greater detail was needed to understand how savings would be achieved. The 

example of libraries was given.  

 
Response: 

The budget was agreed at the meeting of full Council on 12 February 2020. 

 

 

Page 111



 
GLOUCESTERSHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 
 
 

The Gloucestershire Police and Crime Panel receives a range of reports to enable it 
to scrutinise the work of the Police and Crime Commissioner for Gloucestershire. 
These include reports from the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner 
(OPCC) Chief Executive, and regular highlight reports listing the activity undertaken 
against each priority area in the Police and Crime Plan. The Panel is also required to 
receive the Police and Crime Plan and associated delivery reports. 
 
Whilst appreciating the detail in the reports received Panel members agreed that 
they needed to be able to engage directly with the Police and Crime Commissioner 
on work undertaken between Panel meetings. The Panel has therefore been piloting 
receiving a verbal update from the Police and Crime Commissioner at each meeting; 
this pilot was interrupted by the Covid-19 pandemic.  
 
The Panel is required to comment on the Annual Report of the Police and Crime 
Commissioner. The Panel received this in July 2019 just ahead of its publication. 
Panel members questioned how some of the data in the report had been presented, 
why there was no information regarding the number of non crime calls managed by 
the Police and the impact on the service, why there was a lack of crime data 
included in the report, and no reflection on the climate change agenda and wildlife 
crime. Members agreed that it would have been helpful to have received this report 
earlier in the drafting process. The Police and Crime Commissioner agreed to feed 
members comments into the report ahead of its publication. 
 
Following the HMICFRS Crime Data Inspection (CDI) (report published July 2019) 
Gloucestershire Police had received a rating of inadequate. The Police and Crime 
Commissioner and Chief Constable met with the Panel to discuss what this meant 
for the Police in Gloucestershire. The Chief Constable informed members that it was 
important to note that this inspection report was not discussing service failure but 
about the recording of data. He was clear that his intention was not to make excuses 
for this rating; the constabulary had let itself down, but had understood the issues 
and had already recovered the position. At the time of the Panel meeting in response 
to the recovery plan the Police were at a 90% compliance rate. 
 
The Panel is required to comment on the appointment of the Chief Executive of the 
OPCC. During this year the Panel were pleased to agree the appointment of the 
Deputy Chief Executive to the Chief Executive position. The Panel had worked with 
the Deputy for some time and was cognisant of their professionalism and suitability 
for the post of Chief Executive. 
 
The Panel is concerned abut the impact on the Police of their being seen as the first 
line of response for non-crime calls, in particular mental health related calls. The 
Panel had a detailed discussion on this matter with the Deputy Police and Crime 
Commissioner (as lead on this area). It was clear that this was a complex issue and 
one that would only be resolved through strong partnership work. The OPCC had 

Page 112



commissioned a detailed analysis of this issue and it was agreed that the outcome of 
this work would be reported back to the Panel in due course. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 113



 
CHILDREN AND FAMILIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

2019-20 
 

Children’s Services Improvement Journey 
Following the council’s rating of Inadequate from the Ofsted Inspection of services 
for children in need of help and protection, children looked after and care leavers in 
February 2017 much of the committee’s focus has been on the council’s 
Improvement journey.  
 
The council received monitoring visits from Ofsted in April and September 2019, and 
February 2020. The committee held additional meetings to debate/discussion the 
outcome letters from these visits. The Independent Chair of the Improvement Board, 
the Director of Children’s Services (DCS) and the Cabinet Member for Children’s 
Safeguarding and Early Years attended these meetings to inform and engage with 
members on the issues raised. The meeting to receive the outcome of the February 
2019 Monitoring Visit was cancelled due to the Covid-19 pandemic. 
 
The main frustration for members following the Ofsted Inspection has been the pace 
of change. This issue has been reflected in the outcomes from the Ofsted Monitoring 
Visits and in discussions with the Independent Chair of the Improvement Board and 
the DCS. Members were, however, pleased to note at their meeting in July 2020 that 
the Independent Chair indicated that they were now confident in the council’s 
direction of travel, and that the pace of change had picked up. 
 
Important factors in the Improvement Journey included: the establishment of the 
Social Work Academy; the Essentials Training programme; the changes to the 
Senior Leadership Team; and, a reducing dependence on agency workers. 
Concerns remain with regard to culture change, but members feel assured that the 
changes in the Senior Leadership will drive through the necessary change, and that 
the council is working with the DfE to achieve this. 
 
Whilst the Covid-19 pandemic lockdown had presented challenges it had also 
identified strengths, including the robust communication channels that enabled clear 
and consistent message to be shared with staff, and the speed with which the ICT kit 
had been rolled out to support staff in working from home. Staff had also used their 
initiative and driven through ways of working to ensure that children and their 
families were best supported during this period, eg. the virtual court process.  
 
There had been a reduction in the number of referrals to the MASH (Multi Agency 
Safeguarding Hub) during the lockdown but it was anticipated that with schools 
reopening this number would increase. The committee was assured that the service 
was prepared for this increase. 
 
The committee was pleased to note that the council benefited from the placement of 
Ofsted Inspectors and Regional Schools Commissioner team members with council 
staff during the lockdown. This has proved beneficial in informing preparations for 
the upcoming inspection, and work with schools. 
 

Page 114



The council was subject to a Focused Review by Ofsted in October 2020 and the 
committee will receive the outcome of this in December 2020. 
 
Concerns remain as to whether the council will achieve an improved rating in the 
next full Ofsted Inspection. However, the committee recognises the hard work by 
social work staff, the strong leadership and determination of the Senior Leadership 
Team in Children’s Services to maintain the pace of change and deliver robust 
services for children and families in Gloucestershire.   
 
 
Other areas covered 
Schools - The committee met with the Reginal Schools Commissioner to discuss and 
debate the challenges around the Academy Schools agenda.  
 
The committee also discussed the impact of the pandemic on schools and the work 
in place to support schools and families as pupils returned to education settings. 
 
Safeguarding Children in Gloucestershire – the committee receives the Annual 
Safeguarding Children Report each year. This year the Working Together to 
Safeguard Children arrangements came into force and the committee was briefed on 
these changes. 
 
Serious Case Reviews (SCRs) - the committee receives briefings as necessary. It is 
important the committee is assured the learning from the SCRs is taken forward 
appropriately. 
 
Revenue Budget Monitoring – the committee is concerned about the significant 
overspend in the budget. It receives regular monitoring reports, and has also held a 
(virtual) briefing session to enable members to fully explore the issues. Members of 
the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny were invited to this briefing as that committee 
leads on the scrutiny of the budget process. 
 
Youth Offending Service (YOS) – The YOS received a requires improvement rating 
from HMIP (Her Majesty’s Inspector of Prisons) in January 2020. The committee was 
disappointed given that the main factor in this decision related to the out of court 
work, which in Gloucestershire is delivered through the Children First programme. 
Children First has delivered a significant reduction in the re-offending rate, and it was 
disappointing that the inspection regime appears to be at odds with positive 
initiatives such as these. The council and the Youth Justice Board had challenged 
this rating. The committee will follow up on this area of work at its meeting in January 
2021. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 115



 
IMPACT OF COVID-19 
 
 
Scrutiny activity commenced March 2020, and is ongoing.  

 

Background 

During 2020, the world was faced with the emergence of a novel coronavirus, 

COVID-19. This led to a pandemic on an unprecedented scale, and resulted in the 

United Kingdom locking down on 23 March 2020, whereby people were asked to 

stay at home wherever possible, non-essential shops and businesses were shut, and 

the provision of many services, including County Council services, was disrupted. 

Throughout summer 2020, there was some return to normality, however restrictions 

have tightened again as the number of COVID-19 cases have increased moving into 

autumn. 

The Adult Social Care and Communities Scrutiny Committee has been responsible 

for scrutinising the Council’s response to the COVID-19 pandemic.  

Membership  

Councillors: Phil Awford, Iain Dobie, Andrew Gravells, Terry Hale, Jeremy Hilton, 

Stephen Hirst (Chair), Shaun Parsons, Brian Robinson, and Steve Robinson.  

Aims/ Objectives 

The Committee wished to have an understanding of the impact of the pandemic 

within the County, including on County Council services, and as to how the Council 

was responding. This would enable the Committee to scrutinise the effectiveness of 

the response and identify any areas of learning for the future. 

Recommendations 

Regular updates have been received on coronavirus data within the County through 

the Director of Public Health report, as well as on the establishment of the Local 

Outbreak Management Plan, and the impact of the pandemic on Council services.  

The Committee has also received several in-depth focused reports relating to the 

response to and impacts of the pandemic in the County, including COVID-19 testing 

in care homes; support to care homes during COVID-19; and the impact and 

changes to Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Services as a result of COVID-19. 

Scrutiny of COVID-19 in Gloucestershire is ongoing, as the pandemic continues. 

Additionally, as the Council moves into the recovery phase, there will be an 

Page 116



opportunity to scrutinise the effectiveness of the response to the pandemic, as well 

as to consider the lessons learned. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 117



 
LOCAL MEETINGS – GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC 
GROWTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
 
 
 
 

Background:  

In June 2017 the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Scrutiny Committee (GEGSC) 
agreed that the two ‘stand alone’ Committee meeting dates in February and October 
would be held at one of the six district council offices (arranged on a rotational 
basis). 
 
Membership: 
 
Cllrs Brian Robinson, Cllr Matt Babbage, Cllr Kevin Cromwell (Chair), 
Cllr Stephen Davies, Cllr Ben Evans, Cllr Kate Haigh (Vice-Chair), Cllr Klara 
Sudbury, Cllr Sajid Patel (Gloucester), Cllr Nicky Packer (Forest of Dean), Cllr Paul 
McCloskey (Cheltenham), Cllr John Murphy (Tewkesbury), Cllr Gina Blomefield 
(Cotswolds) and Cllr Simon Pickering (Stroud) 
 
Meetings: 

Tewkesbury Borough Council – 19 October 2017 
Cotswold District Council – 22 February 2018 
Cheltenham Borough Council – 19 October 2018 
Forest Of Dean District Council – 14 February 2019 
Stroud District Council – 30 October 2019 
Gloucester City Council – 26 February 2020 
 

Aims and Objectives 

This aimed to provide an opportunity for each authority to present to the Scrutiny 
Committee an overview of the economic growth related issues in their area, and for 
all members of the respective district to attend the meeting and present questions on 
local issues. 
 
In addition, the Scrutiny Committee would aim to gain a better understanding of the 
issues impacting the economic growth agenda for each district and consider how 
engagement between the GFirst LEP, the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint 
Committee (GEGJC), the GEGSC and District Authorities might be improved. 
 
Recommendations  

Following the completion of the six meetings, a report was produced that 

Page 118



summarised each meeting, points raised and any outcomes (a copy of which can be 
found here – item 10). The report was presented as an information item at the 
Committee’s meeting on 2 July 2020, members were asked to review it and submit 
any comments or observations to DSU. Comments received then formed an 
outcome report (a copy of which can be found here – item 5). 
 
In response to both the summary and outcome report, the Committee have agreed 

that going forward; there will be a standing item on the Committee’s agenda to give 

district members an opportunity to feedback on key economic growth 

points/issues/actions from their respective councils. 

The Chair is due to present this report to the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint 

Committee in November 2020 for information. 

 
Response: 

N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 119

https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/g9886/Public%20reports%20pack%20Thursday%2002-Jul-2020%2010.00%20Gloucestershire%20Economic%20Growth%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=10
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/g9540/Public%20reports%20pack%20Wednesday%2021-Oct-2020%2013.30%20Gloucestershire%20Economic%20Growth%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=10


 
Joint Scrutiny of the Local Transport Plan Review 
 
 
 
 
Background:  

Noting comments made in the scrutiny review of the close working nature of 
Environment and Economic Growth Scrutiny Committees, it was agreed that one the 
‘lap over topics’ was the Local Transport Plan. 
 
It was requested therefore that officers kept both Committees up to date on this topic 
and save officer time on making the presentation twice, two joint Committee 
meetings were arranged. 
 
Membership: 
 
Cllrs Brian Robinson, Cllr Matt Babbage, Cllr Kevin Cromwell (Chair), 
Cllr Stephen Davies, Cllr Ben Evans, Cllr Kate Haigh (Vice-Chair), Cllr Klara 
Sudbury, Cllr Sajid Patel (Gloucester), Cllr Robert Bird, Cllr Dr John Cordwell, Cllr 
Stephen Hirst, Cllr Keith Rippington, Cllr Eva Ward, Cllr Suzanne Williams, Cllr Phil 
Awford Cllr Nicky Packer (Forest of Dean), Cllr Paul McCloskey (Cheltenham), Cllr 
John Murphy (Tewkesbury), Cllr Gina Blomefield (Cotswolds) and Cllr Simon 
Pickering (Stroud) 
 
Meetings: 

Members had two Joint Scrutiny meetings on 18 September 2019 and 23 September 

2020. These were both existing Environment Scrutiny Committee dates, agenda and 

minutes were published following normal guidelines. 

Aims and Objectives 

To scrutinise the ongoing LTP Review from both an environmental and economic growth 

point of view 

The meeting on 18 September asked members to consider the emerging LTP 
Review updates and changes with regards to the LTP Review (2019). This is ahead 
of taking a draft LTP revised document to Cabinet in December. 
 
Once a draft document had been approved by Cabinet, officers went out to public 
consultation. The meeting on 23 September 2020 therefore reviewed changes make 
following the consultation.  
 
From both meetings, officers took away comments and suggested amendments to 
work them into the revised document. 
 
Recommendations  

Page 120



There comments, questions and amendments from members were minuted and can be 

viewed at the following links: 

18 September 2019: 

https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/g9336/Printed%20minutes%20Wednesday%201

8-Sep-2019%2010.00%20Environment%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=1 

23 September 2020: 
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=773&MId=9577&Ver=4 

 
The final revised document is now due to go to Cabinet in January 2021. 
 
Response: 

N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 121

https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/g9336/Printed%20minutes%20Wednesday%2018-Sep-2019%2010.00%20Environment%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=1
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/g9336/Printed%20minutes%20Wednesday%2018-Sep-2019%2010.00%20Environment%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=1
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=773&MId=9577&Ver=4


 
FIT FOR THE FUTURE CONSULTATION  
(Developing Specialist Hospital Services for Gloucestershire) 

 
 
 
 
Background:  

Scrutiny plays a key role in holding NHS Commissioners and NHS Trusts to account, 
scrutinising local NHS services and ensuring NHS Commissioners and Trusts 
involve, engage and consult lawfully and appropriately with local residents. Part of 
this role includes determining whether a service change constitutes a ‘substantial 
variation’ in the delivery of NHS services. It is the role of the relevant Local Authority 
to consider whether a proposed service change is ‘substantial’ and subject to public 
consultation. In Gloucestershire this role is delegated to the Health Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee (HOSC). 
 
HOSC members had been advised of NHS ‘Fit for Future’ proposals via regular 
updates to the committee over several years. At its meeting on 22 October 2020, the 
NHS Clinical Commissioning Group, (represented by One Gloucestershire Integrated 
Care System), set out its consultation proposals and outline plan to consider options 
for the organising of specialist hospital services across Cheltenham General and 
Gloucestershire Royal Hospitals. Having sought the views of the committee, 
consultation commenced on 22 October 2020, engaging with Gloucestershire 
residents, NHS and care staff, community and voluntary partners, (including HOSC). 
The consultation continued until 17 December 2020. 
 
Noting strong expressions of concern from some members of the committee, (in 
relation to the timing of the consultation and the need to respond to the challenges 
and pressures created by the COVID-19 pandemic), the NHS CCG advised that, to 
delay the consultation was not an option and could seriously hinder the process. The 
committee noted the steps taken to proceed with the consultation, including 
mitigations taken in response to the committees concerns. The NHS CCG reiterated 
the significance of the benefits anticipated from the Fit for the Future Programme 
and reaffirmed its decision to consult on the proposals at this time. The consultation 
followed an extensive period of public and staff engagement. 
 
Membership: 
 
Gloucestershire Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
Aims and Objectives 

The consultation aimed to seek feedback on options for organising the following 
services:  
 

 Acute Medicine (acute medical take)  

Page 122



 Gastroenterology inpatient services - medical care for stomach, pancreas, 
bowel or liver problems  

 General Surgery – conditions relating to the gut. Services: emergency general 
surgery, planned Lower Gastrointestinal [GI]/colorectal surgery and day case 
Upper and Lower GI surgery  

 Image Guided Interventional Surgery (IGIS) – where surgeons use 
instruments with live images to guide the surgery, including following a heart 
attack, trauma and cancer. Services: interventional radiology, interventional 
cardiology and vascular surgery  

 Trauma and Orthopaedic inpatient services (T&O) - diagnosis and treatment 
of conditions relating to the bones and joints.  

 
The objectives of the consultation were to: - 
 

 Improve health outcomes for patients  
 Reduce waiting times and limit the number of cancelled operations  
 Make sure patients are assessed by the appropriate hospital specialist with 

timely decisions about their treatment and care  
 Ensure there are always safe staffing levels, including senior doctors available 

24/7 
 Ensure hospital teams have the best equipment and facilities  
 Support joint working between services to reduce the number of hospital visits 

people have to make  
 Create flagship centres for research, training and learning – and in doing so 

attract and retain the best staff for Gloucestershire Hospitals 
 Deliver more specialist services in Gloucestershire to enable people to 

receive care locally rather than travelling to Bristol, Birmingham and Oxford  
 Provide two thriving, vibrant hospital sites with strong identities and providing 

world class, leading edge treatment.  
 
There were no proposals to close Cheltenham General Hospital’s A&E Department. 
 
In response to the current COVID-19 Pandemic, consultation was be undertaken in a 
number of ways, offering a wide range of consultation activities from which to 
support the required socially distanced consultation process.  
 
Recommendations/summary 

The NHS sought feedback from 22 October until 17 December 2020. An 
independently run online Citizens’ Jury will be held in January 2021 to consider the 
feedback and make recommendations. People from across Gloucestershire will be 
selected and paid to take part in this process. A consultation review period will follow 
before final decisions are made by the CCG in March 2021. Update reports will be 
presented to HOSC at its committee meetings on 12 January and 2 March 2021. 
 

 

 

 

Page 123



 
MEMBER DEVELOPMENT GROUP  
 
 
 
Membership 

Cllrs Kate Haigh (Chair), Kevin Cromwell, Lorraine Patrick, Eva Ward, Joe Harris, 

Andrew Gravells 

Aims/ Objectives 

The Member Development Group coordinates activities and events organised to 

provide members with information to support them in their role, for example 

seminars, workshops, presentations, conferences and visits relating to services 

provided by the Council and its partners. Their remit also includes: 

- Reviewing the ongoing member development programme 

Reviewing the four yearly County Council election member induction 

programme 

- Considering opportunities for working with district councils and neighbouring 

areas. 

Activities 

Members Matter Website 

The Member Development Group worked alongside Communications and 

Democratic Services to redesign the Members Matter website. The group was keen 

to develop a website where members could easily access up to date information and 

dedicated resources at any time. The redevelopment began in 2019, and the new 

website was launched alongside a revamped Members Weekly Update email on 16 

November 2020. The website will continue to be updated and developed by the 

Member Development Group, to ensure the most relevant and useful information for 

members is readily available online, particularly in preparation for the county council 

election in 2021.   

Virtual Training Sessions 

As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, events and sessions for elected members 

have moved online. The Member Development Group have been exploring events 

on offer through organisations such as the Local Government Association, and 

assessing their benefit for member development. The group has agreed to promote 

events with members in a targeted manner, by identifying where members would 

benefit, based on particular interests or development needs. 

Member Induction Programme 2021 

Page 124



The Member Development Group has started the process of reviewing the member 

induction programme which will be run for members elected at the county council 

election in 2021. The aim is to ensure that councillors are provided with the right 

information, and helped to develop the right skills, to fulfil their role as an elected 

member. In particular, the group is feeding into the development and content of 

sessions, as well as the development of the induction pack which is presented to 

successful candidates on election. The group will also contribute to and feedback on 

the ICT offer for members.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 125



Summary 

Simon Harper  

Statutory Scrutiny Officer 

 

Over the years I have developed good working relationships with 

colleagues supporting scrutiny across the SW region and further 

afield.  I commonly hear the frustration that scrutiny is not working 

and is failing to deliver the outcomes that it should.   

This report demonstrates that scrutiny really can make a difference, 

not just in terms of Council services, but also the wider public sector including health.  It is 

important for the scrutiny committees to take ownership of their work plans and prioritise 

those areas where they can make an impact. 

I am pleased that more often than not scrutiny members have been able to ‘leave politics at 

the door’ and have worked on a cross-party basis in developing recommendations for 

improvement.  I would like to pay tribute to each of the political groups for the non-partisan 

way they have approached scrutiny since our review of the committee structure.  District 

members have embraced this way of working too and we should rightly be proud of the 

joined up approach to scrutiny we have in Gloucestershire. 

We are fortunate in having a Cabinet that includes a number of members who have 

previously held senior scrutiny positions within the Council.  They understand the value of 

scrutiny and show a willingness to attend meetings and engage in reviews.  

This report provides a timely opportunity for everyone, not just  GCC scrutiny members, but 

also district colleagues, GCC cabinet members, officers, partners and the wider public to 

express their views 

Finally, I would like to make special mention of our scrutiny chairs, vice-chairs and the 

officers who support scrutiny who work so closely together to make scrutiny as effective as it 

is.  The value of the working relationships they have developed over recent years should 

never be under-estimated. 

Thank you 

 

 

 

Page 126



Scrutiny of the draft 2021/22 budget & priorities

Sessions will be held with Cabinet Member and Directors for each scrutiny committee to discuss the 
draft budget. COSC members in attendance throughout the day in order to identify any recurring 
themes and trends identifying the key areas they wish for inclusion in their report to Cabinet. 

Members are advised to consider how effectively the proposed budget responds to:

o the changing needs of Gloucestershire residents and communities?
o the priorities and ambitions set out within the Council Strategy – Looking to the Future?
o Any legislative or other changes in national policy or guidance

7 January 2020 
Room: Council Chamber/ Virtual Meeting

9:30am Council Strategy 
Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Cllrs Mark Hawthorne, 
Officers: Pete Bungard, 

10.00am Environment Scrutiny Committee
Economic Growth Scrutiny Committee

Cllrs: Vernon Smith, Nigel Moor, Patrick Molyneux, 
Officers: Colin Chick

11:15am Break

11:30am Adult Social Care and Communities

Cllrs: Kathy Williams, Tim Harman, Dave Norman
Officers: Margaret Willcox, Sarah Scott,  Wayne Bowcock. 

1pm Lunch break

1:45pm Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee

Cllrs Richard Boyles, Patrick Molyneux
Officers: Chris Spencer

3pm Break

3:15pm Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee
(Core Council)

Cllr Lynden Stowe
Officers:  Steve Mawson

3:45pm  Feedback to Leader of Council
 Cllrs Mark Hawthorne, 
 Pete Bungard

4pm Discussion around key themes for report.

Report will then go to COSC  and Cabinet 

Page 127

Agenda Item 10



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the previous meeting
	5 Strategic Performance Management Report 2nd Quarter 2020/21
	COSC - 19.11.2020 Q2 Performance Scorecards v3

	6 Financial Monitoring report
	7 Performance Report - Corporate Resources 2nd Quarter 2020/21
	8 public participation scrutiny task group
	9 Annual Scrutiny Report
	10 Arrangements for Budget Scrutiny



